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ViV Healthcare Limited
Strategic report for the year ended 31st December 2013

In this report “ViV Healthcare” or the “Group” means ViV Healthcare Limited and its subsidiary undertakings
The “Company” means VilV Healthcare Limited

The Directors submit their Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, and the audited consolidated financial
statements for ViV Healthcare for the year ended 31st December 2013

Review of business
Financial highlights

During the year the Group’s turnover increased to £1,371 milhion (2012 £1,337 mullion), and profit after tax
reduced to £150 mullion (2012 £492 million}), driven by movements in non-core items Core operating profit
before tax increased to £876 million (2012 £797 nullion), driven mainly by the increase n turnover, and
savings on royalties within cost of sales Core performance 1s defined on page 18 and a reconciliation of core
results to total results 1s set out on page 14

The Group continued to generate cash from operating activities of £617 million {2012 £620 milhon) whilst
returning £652 million (2012 £343 million) to shareholders through ordinary and preferential dividend
payments Cash and cash eguivalents reduced from £756 miilion to £675 million

The Group’s results for the year can be found on pages 12-17
Operational highlights

There was strong growth from Epzicom/Kivexa (up 15% to £748 million) and Selzentry/Celsentrt (up 18% to £144
million) Epzicom/Kivexa 1s performing particularly well across all regions of the business, reflecting increased
confidence i the marketplace and enhanced position in local gwdelines in both North America and Europe

The hughlight of 2013 was the approval of Tivicay in the USA in August Physician response to Tivicay has been
extremely positive and the product launch trajectory 1s on pace with the best recent launches in the HIV space
Twvicay recorded turnover of £19 million in 2013

Regionally, turnover in North America grew, driven by good performance of Epzicom and Sefzentry, together with
the launch of Tivicay Reported turnover for 2013 also included the release of £43m of prior year provisions for
returns and rebates in the USA, related to a change in estimates in hight of new information In Europe turnover
declined, with the arnval of generic competition to Combrvir offsetting strong growth for Kivexa In our
International region turnover also declined, with an increase in generic competition for the mature portfolio
balanced by strong growth for Kivexa 1n Latin Amenica, Japan and Russia

ViV Healthcare has generic competition in the USA to four of its products, Combwir, Epivir, Ziogen, and Trizivir
which saw generic competition for the first time in December 2013

Key performance indicators

The key performance indicators for the Group are considered to be turnover, core operating profit and profit
after tax Details can be found in the financial highlights section above

Strategy and Business Model

The Group's strategic goal 1s to become the leading HIV company, and the partner of choice Strategic
priorities are

e Establish the Vuv integrase inhibitor portfolio as the heart of HIV care
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Strategic report for the year ended 31st December 2013

¢  Establish meaningful partnerships — with business partners, academia and the HIV community
¢ Dniveinnovation in HIV R&D

e Leave no HIV patient behind

e Embrace a challenger mindset

The Group’s business model 15 to be a global specialist HIV company, dedicated to dehvering advances in
treatment and care to people hving with HIV  The Group’s research and development and manufacturing
activities are managed by ViV Healthcare through contracts with its shareholders Commercialisation and
distribution activities are managed by ViV group companies in 15 major countries, and through the
GlaxoSmithKline group of companies {(“GSK") as a distnibutor in other countries

Principal risks and uncertainties

The business 1s subject to certain rnisks inherent in the pharmaceutical industry and specific nsks associated
with being concentrated in a single therapeutic area

Each year, the ViV Executive Team reviews the risks facing the Group and agrees a list of most significant risks
—referred to as Principal risks — that require particular attention from a Group perspective including those that
could cause our actual results to differ matenally from expected and historical results A summary of our
Principal risks 1s set out below,

Product Qualty

Failure to comply with good manufacturing practice regulations by GSK, Pfizer Inc{"Pfizer”),, and other third
party supphers

Corporate Governance & Risk Management

Faillure to embed nisk management prninciptes, and implement an adeguate and effective escalation and
governance framework

Supply Chain Continuity
Faiiure of GSK, Pfizer, and other third-party supphers to deliver a continuous supply of finished product
Patient Safety

Faillure of Vv Healthcare, GSK, Pfizer and other third-parties to appropriately detect, report, and manage
adverse event or safety data for marketed and pipeline products

Commercial Practices and Scientific Engagement

Failure to comply with healthcare and consumer protection laws in place to ensure balanced information 1s
communicated in accordance with the product label, inappropriate utilisation 1s not encouraged {including pre-
approval promotion) and inappropriate payments are not made to healthcare professionals

Intellectual Property
Failure to appropriately secure and protect intellectual property rights

Government Policy

Inability to sufficiently manage changes in government policy including pricing, reimbursement schemes, and
compulsory licensing
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Strategic report for the year ended 31st December 2013

Corrupt Practices

Fallure to comply with anti-corruption laws designed to ensure inappropriate payments are not made to
government officials by ViV Healthcare or third-parties acting on ViV Healthcare’s behalf

Research and Developmen-.

The Group 15 responsible for initiating and funding research and development activities, which are carried out
by GSK, Pfizer and Shionog! & Co, Ltd {“Shionogi”} and their affiliates

In 2013, regulatory approval was obtained m USA, Canada and Chile for Tiwicgy On November 22, 2013, the
Committee for Medicinal Products for Human Use (CHMP} of the European Medicines Agency (EMA) issued a
positive opimon recommending marketing authonsatien of Tiwvicay Regulatory submissions for a fixed-dose
combination with Dofutegravir and Epzicom/Kivexa in Europe, the USA and Canada were completed in October
2013 Phase Il tnals of an investigational integrase inhibitor (GSK1265744} ivestigating oral and long-acting
parenteral formulations are ongoing

Access and Care

Providing a comprehensive, sustainable approach to improving access to HIV medtcines remains a key prionty
for ViV Healthcare This commitment covers 139 countries including middie-income countries, low-income
countries, least developed countnies and sub-Saharan Africa ViV Healthcare offers royalty-free voluntary
licences in all low-income and least developed countries and in sub-Saharan Africa, where 75% of all people
with HIV currently ltve fn middle-income countries the approach 1s on a case-by-case basis, taking into account
the local needs, to improve affordability All marketed and pipeline HIV medicines are covered by Vv
Healthcare's access policy

In addition, we have a number of community iitiatives in place and currently support over 300 projects
around the world through Pesitive Action, the Positive Action for Children Fund and our Paediatric innovation
Seed Fund Chantable donations of £12 7 mullion (2012 £11 0 million) were made via the Positive Action for
Children Fund and other grants

Since 1992, the Positive Action programme has supported those communtties around the world that are most
affected by HIV During 2013, through our Positive Action Southern Initiative and local grants and donations,
we committed over 52 3 million towards funding grassroots projects in the USA, addressing gaps in care and
services for people hving with or at nisk from HIV/AIDS For example, we have provided a grant to the San
Antorio AIDS Foundation in Texas, to enhance therr medical case management programme, and to the
AIDS/RHIV Services Group In Virginia to help them expand their support programmes to include mental health
counselling

Addressing paediatric HIV i1s an important area of focus We continue to support the Paediatric Innovation
Seed Fund, which invested over £1 millien on five projects dunng 2013, including a collaboration with the
Chnton Health Access iniiative and Mylan Pharmaceuticals This partnership aims to produce a taste-masked,
dispersible medicines for paediatric use and in November 2013, Mylan filed a regulatory dossier to the World
Health Organisation pre-quakfication regulatory approval procedure

On behalf of the Board
D Limet

Director

27th March 2014
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2013

Principal activities

ViV Healthcare 1s a specialist HIV group of companies focused solely on the research, development and
commercialisation of HIV medicines On 12th August 2013 VitV Healthcare received FDA approval for Tivicay in
the US This resulted in an equity shift of 0 9% from Pfizer to GSK as per the shareholders agreement The
economic Interest In the Group 15 now held 77 4% by GSK, 12 6% by Pfizer and 10% by Shionogi

The Group continues to have ongoing arrangements with GSK, Pfizer and Shionogi as disclosed in Note 23
The Directors do not envisage any change in the nature of business in the foreseeable future

The Company 1s domiciled within the UK The activities of the Company are those of the holding company
Results and dividends

The Group’s results for the financial year are shown in the consolidated income statement on page 12

The Directors propose an intenim ordinary dividend of £370 million in respect of the year ended 31st
December 2013 being £40,845 per Class A Share, £16,149 per Class B Share, £15,592 per Class C Share,
£66,664 per Class D2 Share and a preferential dividend of £61m being £6,934 per Class A Share, £4,020 per
Class B Share, £4,040 per Class C Share and £173 per Class D1 Share The dividend has been calculated in
accordance with the revised methodology agreed by the Board on %" September 2013

The Directors praposed and paid two intenm ordinary dividends amounting to £634 million and one
preferential dividend of £18 milhion In respect of the year ended 31st December 2012 The first interim
ordinary dividend of £450 million being £55,036 per Class A Share, £22,194 per Class B Share and £21,429 per
Class C Share was paid on the 21st March 2013 The second intenm ordinary dividend of £184 million being
£22,193 per Class A Share, £8,950 per Class B Share, £8,641 per Class C Share and £5,570 per Class D2 Share
was paid on the 28th June 2013

Directors' indemnity

The service contract of each of the Directors of the Group contains an indemnity in respect of liabilities ansing
out of third party proceedings to which he or she is party by reason of his or her engagement in the business of
the Group In addition, the parent company (VuV Healthcare Limited) has provided indemnities to those of its
employees who serve as Directors of certain other Group undertakings These indemnities are In respect of
liabthities arising out of third party proceedings to which the relevant individual is a party by reason of his or
her engagement in the business of the Group undertaking
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2013

Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial
statements were as follows

D Giordano

Z Hong

A Hussain

] Keller

D Limet

A Mackenzie

| McCubbin

D Redfern

JShannon Appointed on 11th june 2013

| Tomlinson Appointed on Sth December 2013
E Strahlman Resigned on 19th March 2013

D Learmouth  Resigned on 1st November 2013

Employees

An extenswve programme of open, two-way communications stimulates employee engagement in the Group's
strategy and day-to-day operattons This includes the publication of regular summary reports from the Group’s
management meetings, a Group-wide intranet, town hall meetings and video conferences Live wvideo
streaming and video on demand options have been developed as additicnal means of ensuring employees
have access to the most senior levels of management, and as powerful tools for building culture and driving
alignment across common goals The programme also involves consultation with employees on a regular basis
so that the views of employees can be taken into account tn making decisions that are lkely to affect their
interests and achieving a common awareness of all employees of the financial and economic factors that affect
the Group's performance

Share ownership schemes encourage participation as shareholders in GlaxoSmithXline plc, the ultimate parent
company of the Group, increasing awareness of short and long term business objectives Global employee
opinion surveys allow employees the opportunity to express therr views and perspectives on important
company I1ssues

The Group 15 committed to employment policies free from discrimmation against potential or existing staff on
the grounds of age, race, ethnic and national ongin, gender, sexual orientation, faith or disability

in particular the Group 1s commutted to offering people with disabilities access to the full range of recruitment
and career opportumties Every effort 1s made to retain and support staff who become disabled while working
for the Group

Political donations

The Group made no political donations during the year {2012 nil}
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ViiV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2013

Financial instruments

Information regarding the Group's risk exposure to and management of financial instruments 1s disclosed in
Note 27 to the financial statements

Directors’ statement of responsibilities in relation to the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements In
accordance with applhicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union In preparing the Group financial statements, the Directors
have also elected to comply with IFRS, as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
tUnder company law the Directors must not apprave the Group financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the prefit or loss of the Group for
that period

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to

« select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

e state whether IFRS as adopted by the European Union and IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB have been
followed, subject to any matenial departures disclosed and explained in the Group financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and to enable them to ensure that the Group financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanities

Disclosure of information to auditors
The Directors in office at the date of this Report have each confirmed that

e 5o far as he or she 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware, and

» he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself or
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are
aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Going concern basis

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the financial statements
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VnV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2013

Independent auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are willing to continue in office as auditors and resolutions dealing with their
reappointment and remuneration will be proposed at a General Meeting of the Group

On behalf of the Board
D Limet
Director

27th March 2014
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Independent auditors’ report to the members of ViV Healthcare Limited

Report on the group financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinton the group financial statements, defined below

s give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended,

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union, and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
This opinion 1s to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report
What we have audited

The group financial statements (the “financial statements”) for the year ended 31 December 2013, which are
prepared by VuVv Healthcare Limited, comprise

¢ Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2013,

s Consclidated income statement for the year then ended,

» Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,
» Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,

* Consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and

s related notes

The finanaial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation comprises applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union

In applying the financial reporting framewaork, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions
and considered future events

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK &
Ireland)’} An audit involves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

= whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group's arcumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed,

s the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
+ the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information n the Directors’ report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we beceme aware of any apparent material misstatements or incensistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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VuV Healthcare Limited
Independent auditors’ report to the members of ViV Healthcare Limited

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In our opinton, we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit We have no exceptions to report ansing from thes
responsibiiity

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our apinion, certain disclosures of
directors’ remuneratron specified by law have not been made We have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of responsibilities set out on page 8, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and faw
view

QOur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinton on the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable
law and 15As (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In
giving these opintons, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report 1s shown or Into whaose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing

Other matters

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of ViV Healthcare Limited for the
year ended 31st December 2013

The Company has passed a resolution in accordance with section 506 of the Companies Act 2006 that the
senior statutory auditor’s name should not be stated

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutery Auditors
London

27th March 2014
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VnV Healthcare Limited
Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31st December 2013

Naotes 2013 2012

£'000 £'000
Turnover 5 1,371,000 1,337,449
Cost of sales (238,759} (238,099}
Gross profit 1,132,241 1,095,350
Selling, general and administration {476,431) (256,846}
Research and development {101,479) (343,782)
Gamn on acquisition of former joint venture 25 - 517,392
Operating profit 6 554,331 1,016,114
Share of after tax profits/{losses) of joint ventures 10 528 (33,290)
Loss on dissolution of joint venture 10 {2,854) -
Finance income 8 2,225 2,849
Finance expense 9 {218,395) (344,624)
Profit before taxation 335,835 641,049
Taxation 11 {145,486) (148,810)
Profit after taxation for the year 190,349 492,239
Consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome
For the year ended 31st December 2013

2013 2012

£'000 £'000
Profit for the year 190,349 492,239
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to income
statement
Exchange movements on overseas net assets {9,286) (10,772)
Tax on exchange movements (1,277) -
Items that will not be reclassified to iIncome statement
Actuarnial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 1,751 {1,225)
Deferred tax on actuarial movements in defined benefit {232) 143
plans
Other comprehensive loss for the year (9,034) (11,854)
Total comprehensive income for the year 181,305 480,385
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31st December 2013

Notes 2013 2012

£'000 £'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,433 1,004
Goodwill 13 203,733 203,179
Other intangible assets 14 2,006,387 2,047,388
Investments in joint ventures 10 - 4,454
Deferred tax assets 11 60,919 67,215
Other non-current assets 81 152
Total non-current assets 2,272,553 2,323,392
Current assets
Inventories 15 21,077 16,458
Current tax recoverable 37,865 -
Trade and other receivables 16 260,859 272,002
Derivative financial assets 27 2,415 817
Cash and cash equivalents 17 675,359 755,812
Total current assets 997,575 1,045,089
Total assets 3,270,128 3,368,481
Current habilities
Short-term borrowings and overdrafts {514} (8,858}
Trade and other payables 18 (453,211) {405,500}
Dernvative financial habihties 27 {169} (233}
Current tax payable (4,407) {6,506)
Short-term provisions 19 {4,701} (876)
Total current habihities (463,002) (421,973)
Non-current habilities
Long-term borrowings (752) (414)
Deferred tax habtlities 11 (185,653) (272,707)
Other provisions 19 (6,666} (10,173)
Other non-current habilities 20 {2,060,439) {1,656,349)
Total non-current habilities {2,253,510) {1,939,643)
Total habilities {2,716,512) (2,361,616)
Net assets 553,616 1,006,865
Equity
Share capital 21 11 11
Share premium 341,000 341,000
Retained earnings 1,485,016 1,741,140
Merger reserve (78,558 {78,702)
Other reserves (1,193,853} (996,584)
Total equity 553,616 1,006,865

The financial statements on pages 12 to 65 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27th March 2014 and
signed on itsfhehalf by

D Limet
Director
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Core results reconciliation
For the year ended 31st December 2013

Note Core Intangible Intangible Preferential Contingent Loss on Total
Results amortisation write-off dvidend consideration  dissolution 2013
re- re- of joint  results
measurement measurement venture
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover 1,371,000 - - - - - 1,371,000
Cost of sales (170,511) {55,889) (12,359) - - - (238,759)
Gross Profit 1,200,489 (55,889) {12,359) - - - 1,132,241
Selling, general (223,201) - - - {253,230) - (476,431)
and
administration
Research and (101,479) - - - - - {101,479)
development
Operating 875,809 (55,889) {12,359) - (253,230) - 554,331
profit
Share of after 10 528 - - - - - 528
tax profits of
Joint venture
Loss on - - - - - (2,854) (2,854)
disselution of
joint venture
Finance Income 8 2,225 - - - - - 2,225
Finance 9 (3,244) - - (215,151) - - {218,395)
expense
Profit before 875,318 (55,889) (12,359) (215,151) (253,230) (2,854) 335,835
taxation
Taxation {239,430) (18,650) 2,413 - 110,181 - {145,486)
Profit after 635,388 (74,539) (9,946) {215,151} (143,049) (2,854) 190,349

taxation for the
year
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VitV Healthcare Limited
Core results reconcihiation
For the year ended 31st December 2012

Note Core Intangible Intangible Preferential Contingent Acquisition Total
Results amortisation write-off diwvidend consideration  adjustment 2012
re- re- results
measurement measurement
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Turnover 1,337,449 - - - - - 1,337,449
Cost of sales {205,451) (32,648) - - - - {238,099)
Gross Profit 1,131,998 (32,648) - - - - 1,099,350
Selhng, general {245,953} - - - {10,893) - (256,846)
and
administration
Research and (89,244) - (254,538) - - - (343,782)
development
Gamn on 25 - - - - - 517,392 517,392
acquisition of
joint venture
Operating 796,801 {32,648) (254,538) - {10,893) 517,392 1,016,114
profit
Share of after 10 (33,290} - - - - - (33,290)
tax profits of
Joint venture
Finance Income 8 2,849 - - - - - 2,849
Finance 9 (3,958) - 144,986 {485,652) - - {344,624)
expense
Profit before 762,402 (32,648) (109,552) {485,652) {10,893) 517,392 641,049
taxation
Taxation {231,781) 13,531 63,600 - - 5,840 {148,810)
Profit after 530,621 (19,117) (45,952) {485,652) {10,893) 523,232 492,239

taxation for the
year
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ViV Healthcare Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31st December 2013

Share Retained Share Merger Cther Total
capital earnings Premium reserve reserves equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1st January 2012 10 1,225,608 - {78,349) {655,783} 491,486
Issue of shares 1 - 341,000 - 341,001
Profit for the year - 492,239 - - - 492,239
Other comprehensive(loss)/ income - {11,501) - (353) - (11,854)
for the year
Total comprehensive income/{loss) 11 1,706,346 341,000 (78,702) (655,783} 1,312,872
for the year
Transfer of finance expense related - 340,666 - - (340,666) -
to preferential dividend
Preferential dividend to - (36,865) - - 36,865 -
Shareholders
Shionog preferred ordinary - 37,000 - - {37,000) -
dividend
Ordinary dividends to shareholders - {306,007) - - - {306,007)
At 31st December 2012 11 1,741,140 341,000 {78,702) (996,584) 1,006,865
Profit for the year - 190,349 - - - 190,349
Other comprehensive (loss)/income - (9,188) - 144 - {9,044)
for the year
Total comprehensive iIncome/(loss) 11 1,922,301 341,000 (78,558) (996,584) 1,188,170
for the year
Transfer of finance expense related - 215,151 - - (215,151) -
to preferential dividend
Preferential dividend to - (17,882) - - 17,882 -
Shareholders
Ordinary dividends to shareholders - (634,554) - - - (634,554)
At 31st December 2013 11 1,485,016 341,000 (78,558} {1,193,853) 553,616

Other reserves represents the preferential dividends payable to shareholders {(Note 18 and 20) and
addittonal value attributed to the original contribution of the former GSK H!V business in Canada in Cctober
2009 following finalisation of the value of the contribution at that date

Other reserves do not affect the calculation of the Company’s realised profits available for distribution
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31st December 2013

Notes 2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit after taxation for the year 190,349 492,239
Adjustments reconciling profit after tax to 24 693,579 387,078
operating cash flows
Cash generated from operations 883,928 879,317
Taxation paid {266,450) (259,071)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 617,478 620,246
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,614) (545)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and 310 198
equipment
Capital expenditure on intangible assets (29,199} (2,591)
Interest received 1,698 1,885
Cash returned to shareholders on dissolution of 1,909 7,392
joint venture
Investment In joint ventures {1,037) {39,451)
Dividends received from joint ventures 10 1,255 2,418
Net cash outflow from investing activities (26,678) (30,694)
Cash flow from financing activities
Net repayment of obligation under finance leases (a51) (258)
Interest paid (2,752) {3,120)
Dividends paid to shareholiders {652,436) (342,872)
Other financing items (6,873) {4,438)
Net cash outflow from financing activities {662,512) {350,688)
{Decrease)/Increase in cash and bank overdrafts {71,712} 238,864
Exchange adjustments (250) (9,967)
Cash and bank overdrafts at beginning of year 747,254 518,357
Cash and bank overdrafts at end of year 675,292 747,254
Cash and bank overdrafts at end of year comprise
Cash and cash equivalents 17 675,359 755,812
Overdrafts (67) {8,558)
675,292 747,254
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2013

1. Presentation of the financial statements
Description of business

ViV Healthcare 15 a specialist HIV group of companies focused solely on the research, development and
commerciahsation of HIV medicines On 12th August 2013 VuV Healthcare received FDA approval for Tivicay In
the US This resulted in an equ:ity shuft of 0 9% from Pfizer to GSK as per the shareholder’s agreement The
economic interest in the Group 15 now held 77 4% by GSK, 12 6% by Pfizer and 10% by Shionog

Complance with applicable law and IFRS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and International Accounting Standards {IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and related interpretations, as adopted by the European Union

The financial statements are alse in comphance with IFRS as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards
Board

Composition of financial statements

The consohdated financial statements are drawn up In Sterling, the functional currency of ViV Healthcare
Limited, and in accordance with IFRS accounting presentation The financial statements comprise

s Consolidated income statement

s Consoldated statement of comprehensive income
» Consolidated halance sheet

« Consolidated statement of changes in equity

e Consohldated cash flow statement

* Notes to the financial statements

Core results reporting

Core results reporting aligns business performance reporting around the underlying trading performance of
the Group and its primary growth drivers by removing the volatility inherent in many of the non-core items
Core results reporting 15 utihsed as the basis for internal performance reporting and the core results are
presented In the Core results reconciliation as management believes that this approach provides shareholders
with a clearer view of the underlying trading performance of the Group The Core results reconciliation also
presents and discusses the total results of the Group The core results are not defined under IFRS and they
may not be directly comparable with other companies' adjusted measures

Core results exclude the following items from total results amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
(excluding computer software and capitalised development costs), preferential dividend and contingent
consideration re-measurement, acquisition accounting adjustments for matenal business acquisitiens and
losses an joint venture dissolution together with the tax effects of these items

Reconciliations of core results to total results are presented on page 14
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Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain items, as stated in the accounting policies

Financial period

These financial statements cover the financaial year from 1st January to 31st Decermnber 2013, with comparative
figures for the financial year from 1st January to 31st December 2012

Composition of the Group

A list of the subsidiary and associated undertakings which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the amount of profit or the net assets of the Group 15 given in Note 30, ‘Principal Group companies’

Accounting principles and policies

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting prinaples
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
habihties and disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of turnover and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those
estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies approved by
the Board and described in Note 2, ‘Accounting principles and policies’ tnformation on the application of these
accounting policies, including areas of estimation and judgement ts given In Note 3, ‘Key accounting
Judgements and estimates’

Implementation of new accounting standards

with effect from 1 January 2013, ViV Healthcare Limited has wnplemented the following new or amended
accounting standards

New IFRS - IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”, IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of
interest in other entities” and IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

Amendments - IFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial habilities”, 1AS 1 “ltems of other
comprehensive income”, IAS 19 “Employee benefits”, IAS 28 “Investments in associates and joint ventures”

The Group has also adopted early an amendment to |AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ inrelation to recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets, with effect from 1 January 2013

These rewvisions had no material impact on the current year
Parent company financial statements

The financial statements of the parent company, ViV Healthcare Limited, have been prepared in accordance
with UK GAAP and with UK accounting presentation The company balance sheet 1s presented on page 66 and
the accounting policies are given on page 67
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2. Accounting principles and policies
Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include

*» the assets and liabilities, and the results and cash flows, ofthe Company and its subsidiaries, and
s the Group's share of the results and net assets of joint ventures

The financial statements of entities consolidated are made up to 31st December each year
ViV Healthcare Limited 1s a private hmited company incorporated in the United Kingdom

Entities over which the Group has the power to direct the relevant activities so as to affect the returns to the
Group, generally through control over the financial and operating policies, are accounted for as subsidiaries
Where the Group has the ability to exercise joint contro! over, and rights to the net assets of, entities, the
entities are accounted for as joint ventures Where the Group has the ability to exercise joint control over an
arrangement, but has rights to specified assets and obligations for specified habiliies of the arrangement, the
arrangement 1s accounted for as a joint operation Where the Group has the ability to exercise significant
influence over entities, they are accounted for as asseciates The results and assets and habilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated into the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting The Group’'s rights to assets, habilities, revenue and expenses of Jjoint operations are included in
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with those rights and obligations

Interests acquired in entities are consolidated from the date the Group acquires control and interests sold are
de-cansolidated from the date control ceases

Transactions and balances between subsidiaries are ehminated and no profit before tax 1s taken on sales
between subsidiaries until the products are sold to customers outside the Group The relevant proportion of
profits on transactions with joint ventures is also deferred until the products are sold to third parties Deferred
tax rehef on unrealised intra-Group profit 1s accounted for only to the extent that it 1s considered recoverable

Goodwill anising on the acquisition of interests in subsidiaries and joint ventures, representing the excess of
the acquisition cost over the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liahilities and contingent
liabilities acquired, 1s capitalised as a separate item In the case of subsidianes and as part of the cost of
investment tn the case of joint ventures Goodwill 1s denominated in the currency of the operation acquired
Where the cost of acquisition i1s below the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference i1s recognised
directly in the income statement

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method Identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent habilities acquired are measured at fair value at acquisition date The consideration
transferred 1s measured at fair value and includes the fair value of any contingent consideration The costs of
acquisition are charged to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are booked in the functional currency of the Group company at the exchange
rate ruling on the date of transaction Foreign currency monetary assets and habilities are retranslated into the
functional currency at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences are included In
the iIncome statement
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On consolidation, assets and habilities, including related goodwill, of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures,
are translated into Sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Theresults and cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries and Joint ventures are translated into Sterling using average rates of exchange

Exchange adjustments arising when the opeming net assets and the profits for the year retained by overseas
subsidiaries and joint ventures are translated tnto Sterling are taken to a separate component of equity

Turnover

Turnover 1s recognised in the income statement when goods or services are suppled or made available to
external customers against orders received, title and risk of loss 15 passed to the customer, reliable estimates
can be made of relevant deductions and all relevant obligations have been fulfilled, such that the earnings
process Is regarded as being complete Turnover represents net invoice value after the deduction of discounts
and allowances given and accruals for estimated future rebates and returns The methodology and
assumptions used to estimate rebates and returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in the light of
contractual and legal obhgations, tustorical trends, past experience and projected market conditions Market
conditions are evaluated using wholesaler and other third party analyses, market research data and internally
generated information Value added tax and other sales taxes are excluded from turnover

Expenditure

Expenditure 1s recognised n respect of goods and services received when supplied 1n accordance with
contractual terms Prowision 1s made when an obligation exists for a future liability in respect of a past event
and where the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated Advertising and promotion expenditure 1s
charged to the income statement as incurred Shipment costs on intercompany transfers are charged to cost of
sales, distnbution costs on sales to customers are included in selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”)
expenditure

Research and development

Research and development (“R&D") expenditure 1s charged to the income statement 1n the period in which 1t
15 Incurred, except that development expenditure 1s capitalised when the criteria for recognising an asset are
met, usually when a regulatory filing has been made in a major market and approval i1s considered highly
probable

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The costs of providing pensions under defined benefit schemes are calculated using the projected unit credit
method and spread over the perniod during which benefit 1s expected to be derved from the employees’
services, consistent with the adwice of qualfied actuaries Pension obligations are measured as the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at rates reflecting the yields of high quality corporate bonds
Penston scheme assets are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date

The costs of other post-employment habifities are calculated in a similar way to defined benefit pension
schemes and spread over the period during which benefit 1s expected to be derved from the employees’

services, in accordance with the advice of qualified actuanes

Actuanal gains and losses and the effect of changes in actuanial assumptions, are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income in the year in which they arise

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement as incurred
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Employee share plans

Incentives in the form of shares in the Group's ultimate parent company, GlaxoSmithKline plc, are provided to
employees under share option and share award schemes These schemes are operated by GSK affiliates The
far values of these options and awards are calculated at their grant dates using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model and charged to the income statement over the relevant vesting penods At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises Its charge based on the number of options expected to vest, where appropriate

Dividends

Final dividends arising on ordinary shares are recognised upon shareholder approval Intenim dividends arising
on ordinary dividends are recognised when paid

Preferential dividends are contingent on the achievement of certain performance criteria on assets provided
by, or acquired from, GSK, Pfizer and Shionog affilates Once earned, preferential dividends are payable in
full, prior to the payment of any ordinary dividend Any amounts that cannot be paid due to insufficient
distnbutable reserves will be carrned forward to future years and will be paid in preference to any
subsequently declared dwvidend

Preferential dividends are recognised as habilities, reported at amortised cost and re-measured at each
reporting date to reflect any changes in expectation of the amounts to be pard Changes to the carrying value
of these habilities are recogmised in the iIncome statement within financial expense

Leases

Leasing agreements which transfer to the Group substantially all the benefits and nisk of ownership of an asset
are treated as finance leases, as If the asset had been purchased outnight All other leases are operating leases
and the rental costs are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Goodwiil

Goodwill Is stated at cost less impairments Goodwill I1s deemed to have an indefinite useful hife and 1s tested
for impairment annually

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost fess provisions for amortisation and impairments

Licences, patents, know-how and marketing rights separately acquired or acquired as part of a business
combination are amortised over their estimated useful lives, generally not exceeding 25 years, using the
straight-hne basis from the time they are availlable for use The estimated useful lives for determining the
amortisation charge take into account patent lives, where applicable, as well as the value obtained frem
periods of non-exclusivity Asset lives are reviewed, and where appropnate, adjusted annually Contingent
milestone payments are recognised at the point that the contingent event becomes certain

Any development costs incurred by the Group and associated with acquired licences, patents, know-how or
marketing rights are written off to the income statement when incurred, unless the criteria for recognition of
an internally generated intangible asset are met, usually when a regulatory filing has been made 1n a major
market and approval 1s considered highly probabte
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Impairment of non-current assets

The carrying values of all non-current assets are reviewed for impairment when there 1s an indtcation that the
assets might be impaired Any provision for impairment 1s charged to the income statement in the year
concerned Impairments of goodwill are not reversed Impawrment losses on other non-current assets are only
reversed If there has been a change in estimates used to determine recoverable amounts and only to the
extent that the revised recoverable amounts do not exceed the carrying values that would have existed, net of
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairments been recognised

Investments in joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method The investments are carnied in the
consalidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of their net assets at date of acqusition and of their post-
acquisition retamed profits or losses together with any goodwill anising on the acquisition

inventones

Inventories are included in the financial statements at the lower of cost (including raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads) and net realisable value Cost 1sgenerally determined on
a first n, first out basis Pre-launch inventory 1s held as an asset when there i1s a high probability of regulatory
approval for the product Before that point a provision ts made against the carrying value to its recoverable
amount, the prowision 1s then reversed at the point when a high probability of regulatory approval 1s
determined

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less any provisions for deoubtful debts Prowisions are
made where there 15 evidence of a nsk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, previous experience and
general economic conditions When a trade recewvable 1s determined to be uncollectable it 1s written off, firstly
against any provision available and then to the income statement

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously provided for are credited to the income statement Long-term
receivables are discounted where the effect 1s maternial

Trade payables

Trade payables are held at amortised cost which equates to nominal value Long-term payables are discounted
where the effect (s material

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, current balances with banks and similar instituticns and
highly hquid investments with maturities of three months or less They are readlly convertible into known
amounts of cash and have an insignificant risk of changes in value

Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at the amounts expected to be paid applying tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilittes and their carrying amounts in the financial statements
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences
arising on investments n subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future Deferred tax 15 provided using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date

Derwvative financial instruments and hedging

Dernvative finanaal instruments are used to manage exposure to market risks from treasury operations The
principle derivative instrument used by the Group 1s forward foreign exchange cantracts The Group does not
hold or 1ssue denvative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes

Dervative finanaial instruments are classified as held-for-trading and are carried in the balance sheet at far
value

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement

Discounting

Where the time effect of money 1s matenal, balances are discounted to current values using appropriate rates
of interest The re-measurement of the discounts is recorded in finance income, finance expense and selling,
general and administration

New accounting requirements

The following new and amended accounting standards and IFRIC interpretations have been i1ssued by the 1ASB
and are hkely to affect future Annual Reports, although in their current forms, none 's expected to have a
material impact on the results or financial position of the Group

New IFRSs Effective for periods
beginning on or after
IFRS 9 Financial instruments

Amendments and revisions to IFRSs

IAS 32 Financial instruments Presentation 1st January 2014
1AS 19 Defined benefit plans Employee contributions 1st January 2015
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3. Key accounting judgements and estimates

In preparing the financial statements, management i1s required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts of assets, habilities, turnover and expenses reported in the financial statements Actual amounts
and results could differ from those estimates The following are considered to be the key accounting
judgements and estimates made

Turnover

Turnover I1s recognised when the title and risk of loss 1s passed to the customer, reliable estimates can be made
of relevant deductions, and all relevant obligations have been fulfilled, such that the earmings process 1s
regarded as being complete Gross turnaver 1s reduced by rebates, discounts, allowances and product returns
given or expected to be given, which vary by product arrangements and buying groups These arrangements
with purchasing organisations are dependent upon the submission of claims some time after the initial
recognition of the sale Accruals are made at the time of sale for the estimated rebates, discounts or
allowances payable or returns to be made, based on available market information and historical experience

Because the amounts are estimated they may not fully reflect the final outcome, and the amounts are subject
to change dependent upon, amongst other things, the types of buying group and product sales mix

The level of accrual 1s reviewed and adjusted regularly in the light of contractual and legal obligations,
historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions Market conditions are evaluated using
wholesaler and other third party analyses, market research data and internally generated information Future
events could cause the assumptions on which the accruals are based to change, which could affect the future
results of the Group

Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at the amounts expected to be paid, and deferred tax s provided on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

The Group believes that it has made adequate provision for any habilities likely to arnse from assessments by
turnover authorities Should 1ssues arise, the ultimate hability for such matters may vary from the amounts
provided and i1s dependent upon the outcome of negotiations with the relevant tax authonties or, iIf necessary,
Iitigation proceedings

Preferential dividends

Preferential dividends are contingent on the achievement of certain performance cntena on assets provided
by, or acquired from, GSK, Pfizer and Shicnog affiliates The Group recognises hiablities in respect of these
preferential dividends which are reported at amortised cost and re-measured at each reporting date to reflect
any changes in expectation of the amounts to be paid (see Note 18 and 20)

Amounts involved 1n this re-measurement are estimates of future performance, based on available market
infarmation and historical performance and therefore may not fully reflect the final dvidend amounts paid

Contingent consideration hability

Contingent consideration for the acquisition of the former Shionogi-VuV Healthcare joint venture 1s expected
to be paid over several years and will vary in line with sales of dolutegrawvir, for which regutatory apphcations
for marketing approval were approved in the US in August 2013 and in the EU inJanuary 2014 The Group
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recognises a liability in respect of this contingent consideration which 1s reported at fair value and re-
measured at each reporting date to reflect any changes in expectation of the timing or amount of
consideration to be paid (see Note 18 and 20)

Amounts involved n this re-measurement are estimates of future performance, based on availlable market
information and historical performance, and therefore may not fully reflect the final consideration amount
paid

Goodwill

Goadwill ansing on business combinations 1s capitalised and allocated to an appropniate cash generating unit
It 1s deemed to have an indefinite Iife and so I1s not amortised Annual impairment tests of the relevant cash
generating units are performed Impairment tests are based on established market multiples or risk-adjusted
future cash flows discounted using appropriate interest rates These future cash flows are based on business
forecasts and are therefore inherently judgemental Future events could cause the assumptions used in these
impairment tests, as set out in Note 13, ‘Goodwill’, to change with a consequent adverse effect on the future
results of the Group

Other intangible assets

Where intangible assets are acquired by the Group from third parties the costs of acquisition are capitalised
Licences to compounds in development are amortised from the point at which they are available for use, over
their estimated useful hives, which may include periods of non-exclusivity Estimated useful lives are reviewed
annually and impairment tests are undertaken If events occur which call into question the carrying values of
the assets

Both initial valuations and vatuations for subsequent impairment tests are based on established market
multiples or risk-adjusted future cash flows discounted using appropriate interest rates These future cash
flows are based on business forecasts and are therefore inherently judgementa! Future events could cause the
assumptions used In these impairment reviews to change with a consequent adverse effect on the future
results of the Group
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4. Exchange rates

The Group uses the average of exchange rates prevailing during the year to translate the results and cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures into Sterling and year end rates to translate the net assets of those

undertakings The currencies which most influence these translations and the relevant exchange rates were

2013 2012
Average rates.
£/USS 1.57 159
£/Euro 118 123
Year end rates:
£/USS 1.66 163
£/Euro 1.20 123
5. Turnover
Turnover by geography 2013 2012
£'000 £'000
North America 611,039 571,254
Europe 520,300 504,131
International 233,045 258,443
Corporate 6,616 3,621
1,371,000 1,337,449
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6. Operating profit

Notes 2012
2013 {restated)
£7000 £'000
The following items have been included in operating
profit
Employee costs 7 82,558 73,479
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 845 370
Amaortisation of intangible assets 14 57,474 33,890
Wnite-off of intangible assets 14 12,359 254,538
Gain on acquisition of joint venture 25 - {517,392}
Net foreign exchange (gains}/tosses (13,600) (14,139)
Inventories
Cost of inventories included in cost of sales 138,712 168,065
Operating lease rentals
Minimum |ease payments 336 468
Contingent rents 107 261
Sub-lease payments - -
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates
Audit of parent company and consolidated 456 614
financial statements
Audit of company’s subsidiaries 316 340
Audit and audit-related services 772 954
Taxation advice 688 835
1,460 1,789

7. Employee costs

All indwviduals performing service for the Group are employed and remunerated by Group companies A
management charge from GlaxoSmithKline Services Unhmited includes an element relating to share based
payments, as calculated under IFRS 2 “Share Based Payments”

In addition, GSK affiliates operate pension schemes in which the Group’s UK and US employees participate
These schemes include defined benefit arrangements where the assets are held independently of the Group's
finances and which are funded partly by contributions from members and partly by contnbutions from the GSK
affiliates at rates advised by independent professionally qualified actuaries

The management fee from GSK affihates includes an element relating to the pension arrangements for the
Group's UK and US employees calculated as if the arrangements were on a defined contrnibutton basis The
underlying assets and lhiabilities of the schemes cover a number of UK and US undertakings and cannot readily
be spht between each Group undertaking on a consistent and reliable basis

Full details of the UK and US pension schemes and employee share schemes can be found in the Annual Report
of GlaxoSmithKline plc for the year ended 31st December 2013

The Group also operates some overseas pension arrangements covering obligations to provide pensions to
retired employees These arrangements have been developed i accordance with local practices in the
countries concerned Pension benefits can be provided by state schemes, by defined contribution schemes,
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whereby retirement benefits are determined by the value of funds ansing from contrbutions paid in respect of
each employee, or by defined benefit schemes, whereby retirement benefits are based on employee

pensicnable remuneration and length of service

2013 2012

£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 70,418 57,144

Social security costs 7,293 6,836

Other Pension Costs 799 1,179

Cost of share-based incentive plans 3,877 2,982

Severance and other costs from integration and restructuring 171 5,338
activities

82,558 73,479

2013 2012

The average number of persons employed by the Group {including 557 491

Directors) during the year

All employees are employed to conduct selling, general and administration activities

The average number of Group employees excludes temporary and contract staff The average number of

persons employed by the Company 1n 2013 was ril (2012 nul)

The compensation of the Directors and Semor Management (members of the VoV Executive Team} In

aggregate was as follows

2013 2012
£'000 £000
Wages and salanies 3,720 3,481
Social security costs 195 279
Pension and other post-employment costs 653 506
Cost of share-based incentive plans 1,439 985
6,008 5,251

Only one Director 1s remunerated by the Group details of which are below
2012
2013 (restated)
£'000 £'000
Aggregate emoluments and benefits 871 918
Pension 211 234
1,082 1,152

Retirement benefits accrued under defined benefit schemes sponsored by sister companies within the GSK for one

{2012 one) Director

One (2012 one) Director received shares and share options under long term incentive plans in respect of qualifying

services to the Group 54,000 share options were exercised during the year {2012 nil)
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8. Finance income

2013 2012

£'000 £'000
Interest income arising from
Cash and cash equivalents 2,236 2,730
Fair value movements on derivatives at fair value through profit (11) 119
or loss

2,225 2,849

All derivatives at fair value through profit or loss are classified as held for trading financial nstrurments under
IAS 39

9. Finance expense

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Interest expense arising cn
Financial hiahilities at amortised cost 2,861 3,547
Fair value movements on derivatives at fair value through profit and loss 383 409
Re-measurement of preferential dividends lrability 215,151 485,654
Release of preferential dividend Lability - (144,986)
218,395 344,624

The re-measurement of preferential dwvidends liability was higher in 2012 as a result of progression of pipeline
products
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10. Joint ventures

2013 2012

£000 £'000
At 1st January 4,454 8,271
Exchange adjustments (1) (168)
Additions 1,037 39,451
Loss on dissolution of joint venture (2,854) -
Other movement (1,909) (7,392)
Dividends received from joint ventures (1,255) (2,418)
Share of after tax profit/{toss) in joint venture 528 (33,290)
At 31st December - 4,454

Investments in Jjoint ventures at 31st December 2012 related to 50% interest iIn VuV Healthcare Shire Canada
Inc {“Shire Canada”), which co-marketed Kivexa, Combivir, Trizivir and Epivir in Canada During the vyear, the
Group receved a dividend of £1 3 million (2012 £2 4 million) from Shire Canada

On 19th May 2013, the joint venture was dissolved Shire Canada sold its 50% share in the joint venture to Viiv
Healthcare ULC (“ Vv Canada™) for a cash payment equal to 50% of the audited net assets of the partnership
as at 19th May 2013 VuV Canada now own and operate 100% of the existing business and assets of the former
partnership

GSK's Jont venture interest was transferred from GlaxeSmithKhne Inc (“GSK Canada’) to ViV Canada in 2009,
at a fair value of £32 milllon This value was mainly ascribed to the value of the service fees due from the
partnership for activities performed by ViV Canada on behalf of the partnershup This created an intangible
asset in the VuV Healthcare financial statements The asset was being amortised and on dissolution, VaV
Canada wrote off the intangible asset, valued at £12 4 million ViV Canada also recognised a loss of £2 9
millicn on dissolution of the joint venture

summansed financial information in respect of the Group’s joint ventures 15 set out below

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Income statement
Turnover 8,681 25,433
Expenses {7,625) (92,013}
Profit/{Loss) after tax 1,056 (66,580}
Balance Sheet
Assets - 5,567
Liabilities - (1,299}
Net Assets - 4,268
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11. Taxation

Taxation charge based on profits for the year 2013 2012
£'000 £'000
UK corporation tax at the UK statutory rate 59,988 119,816
Overseas taxation 167,765 131,914
Current taxation 227,753 251,730
Deferred taxation {82,267) (102,520)
145,486 148,810
Reconciliation of the taxation rate on Group profits 2013 2012
% %
UK statutory rate of taxation 23.3 24.5
Differences in overseas taxation rates 19.4 4.9
Changes in tax rates (6.8) (1.0)
Non-taxable income (2 3) (35)
Prior year items 9.8 {1.6)
Tax rate 43.4 23.3
Tax on items charged to equity and statement of comprehensive 2013 2012
income £'000 £'000
Current taxation
Foreign exchange movements {1,277) -
{1,277) -
Deferred taxation
Defined benefit plans (232) 143
(232) 143
Total (charge) / credit to equity and statement of comprehensive {1,509) 143
Income

All of the above items have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income

The Group operates In countries where the tax rate differs from the UK tax rate The impact of these overseas
taxes on the overall rate of tax s shown above

The Group 1s required under IFRS to create a deferred tax asset in respect of unrealised intercompany profit
arising on inventory held by the Group at the year-end by applying the tax rate of the country in which the
inventory 1s held No provision has been made for taxation which would arise on the distribution of profits
retained by overseas subsidiaries The unprovided deferred tax onunremitted earnings at 31 December 2013
1s estimated to be £nil (2012 £0 5 million} which relates to taxes repayable on repatnation and dividend
withholding taxes levied by overseas tax jurisdictions UK legslation relating to company distributtons
provides exemption from tax for most repatriated profits, subject to certain excepticns The aggregate
amount of these unremitted profits at the balance sheet date was approximately £232 million {2012 £201
million)
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Movement in deferred  Accelerated  Intangibles Intra- Tax Other net  Offset within Total
tax assets and capital and group losses  temporary countries
habilities allowances contingent profit differences

£'000 liability £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

£'000

Deferred tax assets at 356 148,262 30,741 - 41,572 (154,716) 67,215
1st January 2013
Deferred tax habiltties at - (427,221) - - (202) 154,716 (272,707)
1st January 2013
At 1st January 2013 356 (277,959) 30,741 - 41,370 - {205,492)
Exchange adjustments {1} 85 (1,383} {6) 18 - {1,277)
Credit/(charge) to iIncome 16 88,361 {6,214) 12,822 (12,718} - 82,267
statement
Charge to statement of - - - - {232) - (232)
comprehensive income
At 31st December 2013 371 {189,503) 23,144 12,816 28,438 - {124,734)
Deferred tax assets at 371 271,546 23,144 12,816 28,644 {275,602) 60,919
31st December 2013
Deferred tax habilities at - {461,049) - - {206) 275,602 {185,653}
31st December 2013

The deferred tax credit to income relating to changes in tax rates 1s £23 0 million {2012 £6 4 million) All other
deferred tax movements anse from the ongination and reversal of temporary differences Other net
temporary differences include accrued expenses and other provisions

At 31st December 2013, the Group had recognised a deferred tax asset of £12 8 milion {2012 £nil) in respect
of income tax losses of approximately £32 6 milllion (2012 £nil) The Group had no capital losses at 31st
December 2013 Deferred tax assets are recognised where it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be
available to utifise losses

Factors affecting the tax charge in future years

As a global organisation there are many factors which could affect the future effective tax rate of the Group
The mix of profits across different terntories, transfer pricing and other disputes with tax authonties can all
have a significant iImpact on the Group’s effective tax rate

Changes to tax legislation in territories where ViV Healthcare has business operations could also affect the
Group's effective tax rate The UK Government has enacted some significant changes to the UK taxation
system In December 2012, the UK Government announced that as part of the ongoing phased reduction in the
main rate of corporation tax, the main rate will reduce further to 21% from April 2014 and to 20% from April
2015 In July 2012, the UK Government enacted legislation to introduce a patent box regime which will apply a
reduced rate of corporation tax to income from patents with effect from Apnl 2013 The deferred tax
movements reflect the reduction in the UK tax rate to 20% and the effect of the patent box as the rate and
patent box have been substantively enacted
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12. Dividends

The Directors propose an Interim ordinary dividend of £370 milhion in respect of the year ended 31st
December 2013 being £40,845 per Class A Share, £16,149 per Class B Share, £15,592 per Class C Share,
£66,664 per Class D2 Share and a preferential dividend of £61m being £6,934 per Class A Share, £4,020 per
Class B Share, £4,040 per Class C Share and £173 per Class D1 Share The dividend has been calculated n
accordance with the revised methodology agreed by the Board on %" September 2013

The Directors proposed and paid two intenm ordinary dividends amounting te £634 million and one
preferential dividend of £18 million in respect of the year ended 31st December 2012 The first interim
ordinary dividend of £450 million being £55,036 per Class A Share, £22,194 per Class B Share and £21,429 per
Class C Share was paid on the 21st March 2013 The second intenim ordinary dividend of £184 million being
£22,193 per Class A Share, £8,950 per Ciass B Share, £8,641 per Class C Share and £5,570 per Class D2 Share
was paid on the 28th June 2013

13. Goodwill

2013 2012

£000 £'000
Cost at 1st January 203,179 210,695
Exchange adjustments 554 (7,516)
Cost at 31st December 203,733 203,179
Net book value at 1st January 203,179 210,695
Net book value at 31st December 203,733 203,179

Goodwill predominantly relates to the acquisition of the Pfizer HIV business in 2009

Goodwilll 1s atlocated to cash generating uruts which are tested for impairment at least annually The cash
generating units to which the goodwill 15 allocated is as follows North America £92 2 million {2012 £94 4
million), Europe £110 4 million {2012 £107 5 millon) and International £1 1 million (2012 £1 3 million)

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units are assessed using a fair value less costs of disposal
model The valuation methodology uses significant inputs which are not based on observable market data,
therefore, this valuation techrmique 1s classified as level 3 in the farr value hierarchy Fair value s calculated
using a discounted cash flow model based on the Group's acquisition valuation model A post-tax discount rate
of 10 0% 15 applied to the projected risk-adjusted post-tax cash flows and terminal value (derived using a 0%
terminal growth rate) The pernod of specific forecast cash flows used in the valuation model 15 5 years

Key assumptions include the sales growth rates {determined by internal forecasts, based on internal and
external market information), profit margins (determined by past expertence and adjusted for expected
changes), discount rates (based on Group WACC), and terminal growth rate based on management’s estimate
of future long-term average growth rates

No impairment of goodwill was identified in 2013 The valuations indicate sufficient headroom such that a
reasonably possible change to key assumptions 1s unlikely to result in an impairment of the related goodwill
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14. Other intangible assets

Computer Licences,
software patents etc Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost at 1st January 2012 5,750 626,768 632,518
Exchange adjustments (62) {2,522 (2,584}
Additions - 1,779,591 1,779,591
Disposals and write-offs - (254,538) (254,538)
Cost at 31st December 2012 5,688 2,149,299 2,154,987
Exchange adjustments (68) {2,008) (2,076)
Additions - 29,199 29,199
Disposal and wnite-off - (23,585) {23,585)
Cost at 31st December 2013 5,620 2,152,905 2,158,525
Accumulated amortisation at 1st January 2012 (3,031) (71,194) (74,225)
Exchange adjustments 23 1,051 1,074
Charge for the year (1,242) (32,648) {33,890)
Accumulated amortisation at 31st December (4,250) {102,791} (107,041)
2012
Exchange adjustments 38 1,670 1,708
Charge for the year (747} (56,727) (57,474)
Disposal and write-off - 11,226 11,226
Accumutated amortisation at 31st December (4,959} (146,622) {151,581)
2013
Impairments at 1st January 2012 (558) - (558)
Exchange adjustments - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairments at 31" December 2012 (558) - (558}
Exchange adjustments - - -
Imparment losses - - -
Impairment at 31st December 2013 (558) - (558}
Net book value at 31st December 2012 380 2,046,508 2,047,388
Net book value at 31st December 2013 103 2,006,283 2,006,387

Amortisation of licences and patents on marketed products has been charged through cost of sales in the
income statement Wnite-off of £12 4 million was included in cost of sales (non-core)in 2013 in relation to full
wrnite-off of an intangible asset in Vuv Canada (2012 £254 5 milion was included n research and
development} Additions include £29 2 million in relation to capitalised development costs for maraviroc

(Selzentry/Celsentri TM) and dolutegravir (Tivicay TM}

The book values of matenal assets are analysed as follows

2013 2012

Asset description End of amortisation period £'000 £'000
Dolutegravir 2037 1,769,252 -
Maraviroc 2022 235,059 251,071
Assets In development N/A - 1,777,000
Other assets Various 2,076 19,317
2,006,387 2,047,388
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15. Inventories

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Work in progress 9,692 7,444
Firushed goods 11,385 9,014
21,077 16,458
16. Trade and other receivables
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Trade recewvables 220,684 254,798
Other prepayments and accrued income 2,143 544
Interest receivable 63 3
Employee loans and advances 133 76
Other recewables 37,836 16,581
260,859 272,002
Bad and doubtful debt provision
At 1st Jan (6,646) (6,036)
Exchange adjustments (128) 169
Charge for the year (1,901) (4,204)
Subsequent recoveries of amounts provided for 1,645 3,075
Utilised - 350
At 31st December (7,030) (6,646)
17. Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 42,007 58,960
Short-term deposits 633,352 696,852
675,359 755,812
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18. Trade and other payables

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Trade payables 91,514 63,736
Wages and salaries 17,883 15,210
Social security 1,962 2,603
Other payables 17,297 8,085
Deferred income 559 559
Customer return and rebate accruals 118,746 149,086
Other accruals 140,964 148,339
Contingent consideration due within one year 3,376 -
Preferential dividends due within one year 60,910 17,882
453,211 405,500
19, Other provisions
Employee
related Other

provisions provisions Total

£'000 E£'000 £'000

At 1st January 2012 6,535 371 6,906
Exchange adjustments {184) (8) (192)
Charge/{credit) for the year 5,153 {27) 5,126
Utilised {1,991) (40) (2,031)
Increase in pensions obligations 1,240 - 1,240
Other movements 192 (192) -
At 31st December 2012 10,945 104 11,049
Exchange adjustments 218 {40) 178
(Credit)/charge for the year (1,680) 3,79% 2,116
Utilised {966) (161) (1,127)
Decrease In pensions obhgations (1,574) - {1,574)
Other movements {277) 1,002 725
At 31st December 2013 6,666 4,701 11,367
To be settted within one year - 4,701 4,701
To be settled after gne year 6,666 - 6,666
At 31st December 2013 6,666 4,711 11,367

Employee related provisions include a vaniety of benefits accruing to employees under state pension schemes,
small country speafic pension schemes, severance costs, jubilee awards and other long-service benefits
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20. Other non-current liabilities

Contingent
Preferential consideration
dwvidends liability Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 1st January 2013 986,455 669,893 1 1,656,349
Re-measurement 215,151 253,230 - 468,381
Transfer to trade and other payables {60,910} (3,376) - {64,286)
Other movements (4) - (1} (5)
As at 31st December 2013 1,140,692 919,747 - 2,060,439
21. Share Capital
Class A shares Class B shares Class C Shares Class D1 & D2 Total
Shares
Number £'000 Number £'000 Number £'000 Number £'000 Number £'000
At 1st January 6,950 7 2,798 3 252 - - - 10,000 10
2012
Issue of new shares - - - - - - 1,112 1 1,112 1
At 31st Decernber 6,950 7 2,798 3 252 - 1,112 1 11,112 11
2012
At 31st December 6,950 7 2,798 3 252 - 1,112 1 11,112 11

2013

Holders of Class A, B and C Shares are entitled to both preferential dividends and ordinary dividends Class D shares are
sphit into Class D1 and Class D2 Class D1 are entitled to Shionog preferred ordinary dividends and Class D2 are entitled to
ordinary dividends Preferential dividends are based on the performance of certain assets and are payable in full pnor to
any ordinary dividend Any amounts that cannot be paid due to insufficient distributable reserves will be carried forward
to future years and will be paid in preference to any subsequently declared dividend

Voting nghts and ordinary dividend nights are in ine with the share of equity points as defined in the Shareholders
Agreement, subject to certain extraordinary corporate matters, which regure prior written approval of Pfizer andfor
Shionog
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22. Movements in equity

Retained earnings, merger reserve and other reserves, amounted to £212 6 mullion at 31st December 2013
{2012 £665 9 million) of which a loss of £96 8 million (2012 £94 S million) relates to historic joint ventures
which no longer exist at the balance sheet date The cumulative analysis of other comprehensive income 1s
shown below

Retained earnings Merger Reserve Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1st January 2012 {9,813) 1,595 {8,218)
Exchange movements on overseas net assets {10,419) (353} (10,772)
Actuarial gain/{loss) on defined benefit plans (1,225) - (1,225)
Deferred tax on actuarial movements in defined 143 - 143
benefit plans
At 31st December 2012 (21,344) 1,242 (20,102)
Exchange movements on overseas net assets (9,430) 144 (9,286)
Tax on Exchange Movements {1,277) - {1,277)
Actuanal gainf{loss) on defined benefit plans 1,751 - 1,751
Deferred tax on actuarial movements in defined {232) - {232}
benefit plans
At 31st December 2013 (30,532) 1,386 {29,146)

23. Related party transactions

On 12th August 2013 ViV Healthcare received FDA approval for Tivicay in the US This resulted in an equity
shift of 09% from Pfizer to GSK as per the shareholders agreement The economic interest in the Group 15
77 4% owned by GlaxaSmithKline Mercury Limited (@ wholly owned subsidiary of the GlaxoSmithKline ple
group of companies), 11 6% by PHIVCO Luxembourg Sarl and 1 0% by PHIVCO Corp (both members of the
Pfizer Inc group of companies) and 10% by Shionogi & Co, Ltd During the year the Group undertook
significant transactions with entities from within each of the GSK, Pfizer and Shionogi groups of companies

Entities from within the GSK group of companies supplied goods to and purchased goods from the Group
during the year In addition, entities from within the GSK group of companies were engaged to provide support
function services to the Group under 'Support Services Agreements' including regulatory and safety services,
financial management and reporting, human resources, payroll services, IT support, property management,
legal services, contract manufacturing, management of the Group’s UK and US pension schemes, and
management of the Group’s employee share schemes In addition, the Group operates separate agreements
with GSK affiliates for the provision of research and development and for toll-manufacturing services

Entities from within the Pfizer group of companies supplied goods to the Group during the year as well as
providing regulatory, financial reporting and legal services under a 'Support Serwices Agreement' In addition,
the Group operates separate agreements with Pfizer affiliates for the provision of research and development
and for toll-manufacturing services

Entities from within the Shionogi group of companies provided research and development services to the
Group durning the year under a ‘Services Agreement’ and a ‘Research and Development’ Agreement In
addition there 1s an ‘API Supply Agreement’ under which entities from within the Shionog) group of companies
supply goods ta the Group
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During the formation of the Group and on the subsequent acquistion of the former Shionog-Viv Healthcare
joint venture arrangements were entered into for the payment of preferential dividends to GSK, Pfizer and
Shionogi subject to achieving agreed sales targets and development milestones Once the preferential
dividends become payable they are to be paid prior to the payment of an ordinary dividend to the Group’s
shareholders Amounts included within the balance sheet for the expected payments to each party are
included n the table below

The Group alse recognises net economic benefit payments recewable from GSK and Pfizer group companies
These payments arise where HIV products are continuing to be scld by other GSK and Pfizer group companies
because the ViV Healthcare trading entity 1s not yet operational or due to legal or local operating restrictions
The net economic benefit recevable from GSK companies in 2013 represents the amount due in respect of the
three years from 2011 to 2013, and 1s reported within selling, general and administration expenditure

The table below outlines the amounts of the relevant transactions and outstanding amounts at the end of the
financial year

GlaxoSmithKhne pfizer Shionogi
group of companies group of companies group of companies
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Sale of goods 221,994 222,677 5,896 2,535 - -
Purchase of goods and 350,634 275,864 65,237 99,358 1,263 -
Services
Net economic benefit 19,386 - - - - -
Net amounts receivable 14,329 {19,716) (1,426) (870) {160) {128)
/ {payable) at 31st
December
Preferential Dividend (1,051,486) (774,611) (108,411) (195,475) (41,764) (34,251)
hability
Contingent consideration - - - - (923,123) {669,893)
liability

During the year, both the Group and Shire Canada entered into transactions with therr 50/50 Canadian joint
venture company in support of the selling and marketing activities conducted by that joint venture company
During 2013, the Group provided services to the joint venture of £1 6 million (2012 £5 0 milhion)

Only one Director 1s remunerated by the Group, details of which can be found in Note 7, Employee Costs
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24. Adjustments reconciling profit after tax to operating cash flows

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Profit after tax 190,349 492,239
Add back
Tax on profits 145,486 148,810
Share of after-tax {profit)/losses of joint ventures (528) 33,290
Finance expense net of finance income 216,170 341,775
Re-measurement of contingent consideration 253,230 10,893
Depreciaticn 845 370
Amortisation of intangible assets 57,474 33,890
Asset write-off 12,359 254,538
Gain on acquisition of joint venture - (517,392)
Loss on dissolution of joint venture 2,854 -
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {28) (40}
{Increase)/Decrease In inventories (7,486) 18,101
Decrease in trade receivables 29,978 61,852
(Increase)/Decrease in other receivables (23,176) 59,228
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 29,402 {40,627}
(Decrease) in other payables (24,892) (31,314}
Increase in pension and other provisions 1,891 3,006
QOther - 10,698
693,579 387,078
Cash generated from operations 883,328 879,317
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25. Acquisitions

2013

There have been no acquisitions during the year ended 31st December 2013

2012
Book Fair value Fair value
value adjustments
£'000 £'000 £'000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets - 1,777,000 1,777,000
Deferred tax provision - {369,921} (369,921)
- 1,407,079 1,407,079
Negative goodwill - (292,892) (292,892)
- 1,114,187 1,114,187
Consideration settled by shares - 341,000 341,000
Shionog preferred ordinary dividend entitlement - 37,000 37,000
Contingent consideration - 659,000 659,000
Deferred tax on contingent consideration - (147,313} (147,313)
Fair value of investment in joint venture converted into subsidiary - 255,500 255,500
Loss on settlement of pre-existing relationships - {31,000) (31,000}
Total consideration - 1,114,187 1,114,187

Cn 29th October 2012, VuV Healthcare acquired the 50% share of the Shionogi-ViV Healthcare joint venture
previously held by Shionogi The assets include the investigational medicine dolutegravir and early stage integrase
inhibitor compounds The compounds are in development and do not currently generate revenue

The net assets acquired comprise £1,777 0 million of intangible assets and £369 9 million of deferred tax liabibty
Negative goodwill of £292 9 million was recognised as a gain In the income statement This has arisen from the
differing assessments of valuations between the parties, principally as a result of deferning tax payment obligations
between ViV Healthcare Group and 1ts shareholders

Total censideration comprised a 10% equity stake in ViV Healthcare valued at £341 0 million, preferred ordinary
dividend entitlement of £37 0 million, fair value of VuV's Healthcare's existing 50% investment 1n joint venture of
£255 5 million and contingent consideration payable in cash in the future valued at £659 0 million, together with a
deferred tax asset of £147 3 million and a loss on settlement of pre-existing relationships of £31 0 million

The gain on acquisition of the joint venture was £517 4 million, compnsing negative goodwill of £292 9 rmilhon and
a gain ansing from the fair value of the Group’s existing holding in the Joint venture of £255 5 million less loss on

settlement of pre-existing relationshups of £31 0 mullion

The contingent consideration 15 payable based on the future sales performance of compounds developed by the
joint venture, if they become marketed products, and so the total amount payable 1s unlimited

The results of the acquired business are reported as part of the group The transaction has been accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting

Acquisition costs expensed 1n 2012 ansing on this acquisttion amounted to £1 6 million
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26. Commitments

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Comnmitments under non-cancellable leases and other contracts -
Payments due within one year 1,248 1,343
Payments due between one and five years 4,216 1,919
Payments due after five years 22 158
Total commitments 5,486 3,420
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27. Financial instruments and related disclosures

The Group reports in Sterling and pays dividends out of Sterling profits GS5K's Treasury function 1s employed as
a service provider to manage and monitor the Group's external and internal funding requirements and
financial risks 1n support of the Group's strategic objectives Treasury activities are governed by policies
approved by the Group Board of Directors, most recently on 19th March 2013

The Group operates on a global basis, through a number of subsidiary companies and the existing sales
networks of GSK

A Treasury meeting, chatred by our ViV Healthcare Chief Financial Officer {CFO), takes place on a monthly
basts to review Treasury activities Its members receive management information relating to Treasury
actimties GSK's internal auditors review the Treasury internal control environment regularly as part of their
review of GSK's Treasury function

The Group may use a vanety of financial instruments to finance 1ts operations and denvative financial
instruments to manage risks from these operations These derivatives, principally comprising forward foreign
currency contracts and currency swaps, are used to manage exposure to funding rnisks from changes in foreign
exchange rates The Group does not hold or i1ssue derwvatives for speculative purposes and our Treasury
policies specifically prohibit such activity

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group are able to operate as going concerns whilst
availing themselves of intercompany funding where appropnate The capital structure of the Group consists
wholly of shareholders’ equity {(see “Consolidated statement of changes in equity” on page 16) The Board
reviews the Group’s annual dividend policy which 1s established in accordance with parameters set in the
shareholders agreement between GSK, Pfizer and Shionog)

Selling margins are sufficient to cover normal operating costs and our operations are cash generative

Operating cash flow are used to fund investment in research and development of new products Itis also used
to make routine ocutflows of capital expenditure, tax and dividends In 2013, ViV Healthcare returned £652m
to shareholders in dividends

Liguidity risk

The Group benefits from strong positive cash flow from operating units and has substantial cash and cash
equivalents, which amounted to £675 4 million at 31st December 2013 (2012 £755 8 million}

Market risk
Interest rate risk management

The Group has no significant external debt and therefore its interest expense 1s not significantly exposed to
changes in interest rates The Group earns interest iIncome on 1ts cash and therefore benefits from an increase
In interest rates The impact of a decrease in interest rates 1s imited (see interest rate sensitivity)

Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency transaction exposures ansing on internal and external trade flows are not hedged The
Group’s objective 1s to mimimise the exposure of overseas operating subsidiaries to transaction risk by
matching local currency income with lecal currency costs where possible and by maintaining intercompany
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payment terms of 30 days or less Exceptional foreign currency cash flows may be hedged selectively as
approved by the CFO Cash surpluses or borrowing requirements of subsidiary compantes are usually
managed centrally using forward contracts to hedge future repayments back into the oniginating currency

Derivative financial instruments

The principal amount on forergn exchange contracts of £382 3 mulhon (2012 £123 0 milhon) 1s the gross total
of outstanding posittons at the balance sheet date All contracts are for periods of 12 months or less At 31st
December 2013, the Group held outstanding foreign exchange contracts consisting pnmarily of currency swaps
with a total net asset fair value of £2 2 milion (2012 £0 6 milhon) which represent hedges of intercompany
loans and deposits, but are not designated as accounting hedges Changes in farr value are taken to profit and
foss In the peniod to offset the exchange gains and losses on the related intercompany lending and borrowing

Credit risk

The Group considers 1its maximum credit sk to be £921 2 milhon (2012 £1,017 5 millon) which 1s the total of
the Group's financial assets This represents £675 4 million of cash and cash equivalents and £245 9 million of
trade and other recevables and denvative financial assets See page 47 for detals on the Group’s total
financial assets

The Group's greatest concentration of credit nisk 1s £410 1 million deposited in US Treasury and Treasury repo
only market funds In 2012, the greatest concentration of credit risk was £340 4 million deposited with HSBC

Treasury-related credit nisk

The Group has continued to mamntain 1ts conservative approach to counterparty risk throughout 2013 The
aggregate credit nisk in respect of financial instruments that the Group may have with one counterparty 1s
himited by reference to the long-term credit ratings assigned for that counterparty by Moody’s Investors
Service (“Moody’s”) and Standard and Poor’s The table below sets out the credit ratings of counterparties for
cash and cash equivalents The derivatives held by the Group are not significant

Credit rating of counterparty

Aaa/AAA  Aai/AA+  Aa2/AA  Aa3/AA- Al/A+ A2/A A3/A- Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2013
Bank balances and deposits - - - 234,728 26,779 3,778 - 265,285
US Treasury & Treasury repo only - 410,074 - - - - - 410,074
money market funds
Total - 410,074 - 234,728 26,779 3,778 - 675,359
2012
Bank balances and deposits - - - 340,419 192,176 51,580 8,026 592,201
US Treasury & Treasury repo only - 163,611 - - - - - 163,611
money market funds
Total - 163,611 - 340,419 192,176 51,580 8,026 755,812

The credit ratings in the above tables are as assigned by Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s respectively Where
the opinion of the two rating agencies differs, the lower rating of the two 15 assigned to the counterparty

Our centrally managed cash reserves amounted to £632 6 million at 31st December 2013, all available within
three months The Group invests centrally managed hquid assets in bank deposits and Aaa/AAA US Treasury
and Treasury repo only money market funds (which bear credit exposure to the US Government (Aal/AA+
rated)) with a minimum short-term credit rating of A-1/P-1
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The remaintng cash balances are used by subsidiary entities in funding their working capital requirements

Global counterparty mits are assigned to each of ViV Healthcare's banking and investment counterparties
based on long-term credit ratings from Moody's and Standard and Poor’s The Group’s usage of these imits 1s
monitored daily by GSK’s Corporate Comphance Officer (CCO) who operates independently from GSK Treasury
Any breach of these mits would be reported to the CFO immediately The CCO also monitors the credit rating
of these counterparties and, when changes 1n ratings occur, notifies GSK's Treasury so that changes can be
made to investment levels or authority imits as appropriate

Wholesale and retail credit risk

The Group employs GSK as a service provider to monitor credit nsk relating to key wholesalers These activities
include a review of their gquarterly financial information and Standard & Poor’s credit ratings, development of
internal nisk ratings, and the establishment and penodic review of credit imits The results of these reviews are
submitted to ViV Healthcare’s local management to support the risk management process

Outside the USA, no customer accounts for more than 5% of the Group's trade receivables balance In the USA,
in line with other pharmaceutical companies, the Group sells its products to a small number of wholesalers in
addition to hospitals, pharmacies, physicians and other groups Sales to the three largest wholesalers amount
to approximately 84% of the Group’s US sales At 31st December 2013, the Group had trade recevables due
from these three wholesalers totalling £650 milhion (2012 £514 milion) The Group 15 exposed to a
concentration of credit risk 1n respect of these wholesalers such that, if one or more of them encounters
finanaial difficuity, 1t could matenially and adversely affect the Group’s financial results However, the Group
believes there 15 no further credit risk prowvision required in excess of the normal provisien for bad and
doubtful debts (see Note 16, ‘Trade and other recevables’)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The table on page 47 presents the carrying amounts and the farr values of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities at 31st December 2013 and 31ist December 2012 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

* Cash and cash equivalents - approximates to the carrying amount

e Short-term loans and overdrafts - approximates to the carrying amount because of the short maturity
of these instruments

*  Forward exchange contracts - based on present value of contractual cash flows using market sourced
data {exchange rates)

*  Recelvables and payables - approximates to the carrying amount

e Preferential dividends - approximates to the carrying amount

¢ Contingent consideration for business acquisitions — based on present values of expected future
contractual cash flows
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Financial assets and financial habilities

2013 2012
Carrying Carrying
value and value and
Fair value Fair value
£'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 675,359 755,812
Loans and receivables
Trade and other recewvables and certain Other non-current 243,435 260,831
assets in scope of IAS 39
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derwatives classified as held for trading under 1AS 39 2,415 817
Total financial assets 921,209 1,017,460
Financial habilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings
- Bank loans and overdrafts (67) {8,558)
- Obligations under finance leases (1,199) (714)
Total borrowings (1,266) {9,272)
Trade and other payables, and certain Other non-current
labilities in scope of 1AS 39 (1,580,298) {1,382,866)
Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss
Trade and other payables, Other provisions and certain
Other non-current habilities in scope of IAS 39 {923,123) (669,893)
Dervatives classified as held for trading under tAS 39 (169) (233}
Total financial habihities {2,504,856) (2,062,264}
Net financial habilities {1,583,647) {1,044,804)

Held for trading derwatives comprise foreign exchange contracts

Financial assets and habihuies held at fair value are categonsed by the valuation methodology applied in
determuming their fair value Where possible, quoted prices in active markets are used {Level 1} Where such
prices are not avallable, the asset or hability 1s classified as Level 2, prowded ail significant inputs to the
valuation model used are based on observable market data If one or more of the significant inputs to the
valuation model 1s not based on observable market data, the instrument is classified as Level 3
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At 31st December 2013 Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives classified as held for trading under |1AS 39 - 2,415 - 2,415
2,415 - 2,415
Financial liabilities at fair value
Financial habihities at fair value through profit and loss
Trade and other payables - - (3,376) (3,376)
COther non-current liabilities - - {919,747} (919,747)
Dernvatives classified as held for trading under IAS 3¢ . (169) - (169)
- (169) {923,123) (923,292)
At 31st December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives classified as held for trading under 1AS 39 - 817 - 817
817 - 817
Financial liabilities at fair value
Financial habilities at fair value through profit and loss
Other non-current habilities - - (669,893} (669,893)
Derivatives classified as held for trading under IAS 3¢ - (233) - {233)
. (233) (669,893} {670,126)

Movements in the year for financial instruments measured using Level 3 valuation methods are presented below

2013 2012
£'000 £'0C0
At 1st January (669,893) -
Re-measurement of contingent consideration (253,230) (10,893)
Contingent consideration lrabihties for business acquired during the year - {659,000}
At 31st December (923,123) {669,893)

Re-measurement of contingent consideration of £253 2 milion (2012 £109 mullion) attnbutable to Level 3
financial instruments held at 31st December 2013 was reported in Selling, general and administration expenses

during the year

The liabiity position in respect of financial instruments measured using Level 3 valuation methods at 31
December includes £923 1 million (2012 — £669 9 milhon) In respect of contingent consideration payable for
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the acquisition 1n 2012 of the former Shionogi-ViV Healthcare joint venture This consideration 1s expected to
be paid over several years and will vary in line with sales of Tivicay {dolutegravir) Regulatory approval for this
product was obtained in the USA and Canada during the year and in the European Union in January 2014 The
table below shows on an indicative basis the income statement and balance sheet sensitivity to reasonably
possible changes in key inputs to the valuation of this liability

Increasef{decrease) in financial hability and loss/{gain} in Income statement from change in key inputs 2013
£'000
10% increase in sales forecasts 105,000
10% decrease In sales forecasts (104,000)
1% increase in market interest rates (56,000)
1% decrease in market interest rates 62,000

Trade and other receivables and Other non-current assets in scope of IAS 39

The following table reconciles financial assets within Trade and other recevables and Other non-current assets
which fall within the scope of IAS 39 to the relevant balance sheet amounts The financial assets are
predominantly non-interest earning Other assets inciude tax recewvables, pension assets and prepayments,
which are outside the scope of 1AS 39

Notes 2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Trade and other receivables 16 260,859 272,002
Other non-current assets 81 152
260,940 272,154

Analysed as
Financial assets in scope of 1AS 39 243,435 260,831
Other assets 17,505 11,323
260,940 272,154

The following table shows the age of such financial assets which are past due and for which no provision for
bad or doubtful debts has been made

2013 2012

£000 £000

Past due by 1-30 days 9,945 7,574
Past due by 31-90 days 14,686 17,451
Past due by 91-1380 days 14,950 19,651
Past due by 181-365 days 21,653 19,125
Past due by more than 365 days 19,238 7,853
80,472 71,654

Trade receivables include £68 9 million {2012 £60 0 million) after provisions for bad and doubtful debts which
are past due from state hospital authorities in Italy, Portugal and Spain The Group s actively pursuing these
debts and considers the net balance recoverable
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Trade and other payables and Other non-current liabilities in scope of IAS 39

The following table reconciles financial liabiities within Trade and other payables and Other non-current
labilities which fall within the scope of IAS 39 to the relevant balance sheet amounts Accrued wages and
salaries are included within financial habihties Other habilities include payments on account and tax and social

security payables, which are outside the scope of 1AS 39

Notes 2013 2012
£'000

£'000
Trade and other payables 18 453,211 405,500
Other non-current habilities 20 2,060,439 1,656,349
2,513,650 2,061,849

Analysed as
Financial habilities in scope of I1AS 39 - at amortised cost 1,580,298 1,382,866
Financal habilities in scope of 1AS 39 — at fair value through profit or loss 923,123 669,893
Other habilities 10,229 9,090
2,513,650 2,061,849
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Offsetting of financial assets and habilities
The Group has no financial assets and financial habiliies which are set off in the Group’s balance sheet For

Derivative financial assets and habilities, amounts not offset in the balance sheet but which could be offset
under certain circumstances are set out below

Net

financial Related

Gross assets/ amounts

Gross financial  (habilities})  not setoff

financial  (habilities/ per in the

assets/ assets set balance balance
(liabilities) off sheet sheet Net
At 31 December 2013 £'000 £'00C £'000 £900 £'000
Dervative financial assets 2,415 - 2,415 (169) 2,246
Derivative financial iabilities {169) - (169) 169 -

Net

finanical Related

Gross assets/ amounts

Gross financial  (liabilties)  not set off

financial  {liabilities/ per inthe

assets/ assets set balance balance
{habilities) off sheet sheet Net
At 31 December 2012 £m £m £m fm £m
Dervative financial assets 817 - 817 (233) 584
Dervative financial liabilities {233) - (233) 233 -

Sensitivity analysis

The sensttivity analysis has been prepared on the assumption that the amount of net cash {cash and cash
equivalents less overdrafts), the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives portfolio
and the proportion of financial instruments n forergn currencies are all constant Financial instruments
affected by market rnisk include borrowings, cash and deposits and derwvative financial instruments The
following analyses are intended to illustrate the sensitivity of such financial instruments to changes 1n relevant
foreign exchange and interest rates

Foreign exchange sensitivity

The two major foreign currencies in which the Group’s financial instruments are denominated are US Dolfars
and Eures The Group has considered movements in these currencies over the last three years and has
concluded that a 10% movement n rates 15 a reasonable benchmark Financial instruments are only
considered sensttive to foreign exchange rates where they are not in the functional currency of the entity that
holds them Intercompany loans which are fully hedged to maturnity with a currency swap have been excluded
from this analysis

A 10% movement tn rates Is not deemed to have a matenal effect on income or equity
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Interest rate sensitivity

The table below shows on an indicative basis the Group’s sensitvity to interest rates on its floating rate
Sterling and US dollar financial instruments, being the currencies in which the Group has historically held cash
and cash equivalents The Group has constdered movements In these interest rates over the last three years
and has concluded that a 1% (100 basis points) increase ts a reasonable benchmark

2013 2012

Increase in Increase in

income income

£000 £000

1% (100 basis points) increase in Sterling interest rates (2012 1%) 5,637 6,536
1% (100 basis points) increase in US dollar interest rates (2012 1%) 1,385 1,641

These interest rates could not be decreased by 1% as they are currently less than 1% The maximum decrease
in income would therefore be hmited to £2 1 miulion and £0 1 million for Sterhing and US Dollar interest rates
respectively (2012 £2 4 million and £0 1 milhon}

Interest rate movements on foreign currency derivatives, trade payables, trade receivables and other financial
instruments not In net cash do not present a material exposure to the Group’s Income statement based on a
1% increase or decrease in these interest rates

A 1% (100 basis points) movement In Interest rates is not deemed to have a matenial effect on equity
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Contractual cash flows for non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative instruments
The following 1s an analysis of the anticipated contractual cash flows including interest payable for the Group’s

non-derivative financial habilities on an undiscounted basis Cash flows in foreign currencies are translated
using spot rates at 31st December

Obhgations Finance  Trade payables Total
under finance charge on and Other non-
leases obligations current
under finance habilities
leases

£'000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31st December 2013
Due n less than one year (447) {2) (443,233} (443,682)
Between one and five years (753) - (861,454) (862,207)
Between five and ten years - - (2,169,643) (2,169,643)
Greater than ten years - - (2,645,126) (2,645,126)
Gross contractual cash flows {1,200) (2) (6,119456) (6,120,658)
At 31st December 2012
Due In less than one year {300) (3) (396,354) {396,657)
Between one and five years {(415) (11) (429,852) {430,728)
Between five and ten years - - (1,491,974) {1,491,974)
Greater than ten years - - (2,130,664) {2,130,664)
Gross contractual cash flows (715) (14) (4,448,844) {4,449,573)

The following table provides an analysis of the anticipated contractual cash flows for the Group’s derivative
instruments, using undiscounted cash flows Cash flows in foreign currencies are translated using spot rates at
31st December

2013 2012

Receivables Payables Recewables Payables

£000 £'000 £°000 £'000

Less than one year 384,565 382,299 123,707 123,104
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28. Employee share schemes

Incentives in the form of shares in the Group's ultimate parent company, GlaxoSmithKline plc, are provided to
employees under the following share option and share award schemes

Share Option Plan

Options were granted to employees to acquire shares at the grant price in GlaxoSmithKline plc Grants are
normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant but may, under certain
circumstances, vest earlier as set out within the various scheme rules Options are granted at the market price
ruling at the date of grant The granting of restricted share awards (see Share Value Plan below) has replaced
the granting of options to certain employees as the cost of the scheme more readily equates to the potential
gain to be made by the employee

Performance Share Plan Awards

The Group operates a Performance Share Plan whereby share awards are granted to senior executives at no
cost The percentage of each award that vests 1s based upon the performance of the GSK and ViV Healthcare
Groups over a three year measurement period The performance conditions for the awards consist of two
parts, each of which applies to 50% of the award The first part of the performance condition compares GSK's
EPS growth to the increase in the UK Retail Prices Index over the three year measurement period The second
part of the performance condition 15 based on the VuV Healthcare Group’s three year operating profit
compared to the three year plan Grants of Performance Share Plan awards normally vest at the end of the
three year vesting and performance penod and are available for sale at that time

Share value plan

The Group operates a Share Value Plan whereby share awards are granted to employees at ne cost There are
no performance crniteria attached Grants of Share Value Plan Awards normally vest at the end of the three
year vesting period and are available for sale at that time

The share based compensation charge for the above schemes has been recorded in the sncome statement as
administrative expenses of £3 9 milhon {2012 £5 0 million) and s considered immatenial for further disclosure

29. Ultimate parent undertaking

GlaxoSmithKline plc, a company registered in England and Wales, 1s the Group’s ultimate parent undertaking
and controlling party The only group of undertakings for which Group financial statements are prepared and
which inctude the resuits of the ViV Healthcare Limited Group are the consolidated financial statements of
GlaxoSmithKline plc Copies of the consolidated financial statements can be cbtained from The Company
Secretary, GlaxoSmithKline plc, 980 Great West Road, Brentford, Middlesex TW8 9GS The immediate parent
undertaking of the Group 1s GlaxoSmithKline Mercury Limited
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30. Principal group companies

The following represent the principal subsidiaries of the Group at 31st December 2013 Details are given of the
principal country of operation, the location of the headquarters, the business sector and the business
activities The equity share capital of these undertakings 1s wholly owned by the Group except where Iits
percentage interest 1s shown otherwise All companies are incorporated in their principal country of operation
except where stated

Location Subsidiary Activity %
Europe
England Brentford ViV Healthcare Trading Services UK e, fm 100%
Limited
Brentford ViV Healthcare Overseas Limited h 100%
Brentford ViV Healthcare UK Limited m, 1 100%
Brentford ViV Healthcare UK (No 3) Limited r,t 100%
Brentford PHIVCO UK Limited h,1 100%
Brentford PHIVCO UK Il Limited ri 100%
Jersey St Helier ViV Healthcare UK {No 2} Limited h 100%
St Helier PHIVCO Jersey Limited h 100%
St Helier PHIVCO Jersey Il Limited h 100%
Belgium Wavre ViV Healthcare sprl m 100%
France Marly le Ros ViV Healthcare SAS m 100%
Germany Munich ViV Healthcare GmbH m 100%
Italy Verona VaV Healthcare Sr m 100%
Netherlands Zeist ViV Healthcare B V m 100%
Portugal Alges VIVHIV Healthcare Unipessoal Lda m 100%
Spamn Madnd Laboratorios ViV Healthcare 5 L m 100%
Switzerland Muenchenbuchsee ViV Healthcare GmbH m 100%
Americas
USA Witmington ViV Healtheare Company m, | 100%
Wilmington PHIVCO-1 LLC ' 100%
Wilmington PHIVCO-2 LLC | 100%
Canada Calgary ViV Healthcare ULC m 100%
Mexico Col San Lorenzo ViV Healthcare § De RL de CV m 100%
Huipulco
Puerto Rico Guaynabo ViV Healthcare Puerto Rico LLC m 100%
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International
Australia Boronia ViV Healthcare Pty Ltd m 100%

South Africa Bryanston Vv Healthcare {South Afnica) m 100%
(Proprietary) Limited

Japan Tokyo ViV Healthcare KabushikiKaisha m 100%

Russia Moscow ViV Healthcare Trading LLC m 100%

Business activity e exporting, f finance, h holding company, m marketing and trade, 1 holder of intellectual
property, r research and development

The ViV subsidiary company in Mexico will cease to exist in 2014, following agreement to merge into an
existing GSK subsidiary company in Mexico

31. Legal Proceedings
Intellectual Property Proceedings
Epzicom {US)

On June 27 2011, the Group received notice that Teva Pharmaceuticals {‘'Teva’) had amended its ANDA for
Epzicom (the combmation of lamivudine and abacavir) to contain a Paragraph IV certification for two patents
hsted in the Qrange Book, relating to a method of treating HIV using the double combination {expiring in 2016)
patent and a crystal form of lamivudine, alleging the patents were invalid, unenforceable or not infringed On
August 5 2011, the Group filed suit against Teva under the challenged patents in the United States District
Court for the District of Delaware The District Court has consohdated discovery in the £pzicom case with the
Group’s patent infringement suit against Lupin Ltd {‘Lupin’) relating to Trizivir, as both cases involve the same
patent covering the combination of lamivudine and abacavir The case was consolidated with the action
relating to Triznvir and tried in June 2013, a decision tssued in December 2013 The US District Court held the
combination patent to be valid and ruled that Teva product infringed the patent  This itigation will continue in
2014 through the appeals process

Trizivir (LJS)

On May 18 2011, the Group received notice that Lupin had filed an ANDA containing a Paragraph IV
certification for Trizivir (the triple combination of lamivudine, AZT and abacavir) alleging that three patents
listed in the Orange Book for Trizivir are either invald, unenforceable or not infringed These patents relate to
a method of treating HIV using the triple combination (expining in 2016), the hemisulfate salt of abacawvir
(expiring in 2018), and a certain crystal form of lamivudine {expiringin 2016) Cn June 29 2011, the Group filed
suit against Lupin under the patent covering the triple combination in the United States District Court for the
District of Delaware On 31st Qctober 2011, the District Court consolidated the case for discovery with the
Group’s patent infringement suit involving Teva Pharmaceuticals and Epzicom pending in the same court The
case was tried in June 2013 and a deciston was 1ssued in December 2013  The US District Court held the
comhbination patent to be valhd, and that Lupin’s generic version of Trizivir did not infringe the patent Lupin
launched a generic version of Trizivir in the US in December 2013 This htigation will continue in 2014 through
the appeals process
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32. Summary of material differences between IFRS and US GAAP
Preferential dividends

Under IFRS, the estimated future preferential dividends payable to both GSK, Pfizer and Shionog are
recognised as financial habilittes at amortised cost and discounted to account for the change In value over
time Under US GAAP the liability for estimated preferential dividends payable to GSK does not meet the
conditions for recognition and 1s not contingent consideration ansing on a business combination As a result
the hability for the estimated preferential dividends payable to GSK 1s removed from the balance The impact
of the re-measurements of this habilty for changes in actual and rewised estmated cash flows are
consequently removed from the Income Staterment

Taxation

Under IFRS, any tax impacts to the seller as a result of the intercompany transaction are recognized as
incurred Deferred taxes resulting from the intragroup sale are recognized at the buyer’s tax rate Under US
GAAP any tax impacts to the seller as a result of an intercompany sale are deferred until realized by third-party
sale or otherwise recovered {e g, amortized or impaired) In addition, the buyer 1s prohibited from recognizing
a deferred tax asset resulting from the difference between the tax basis and consolidated carrying amount of
the asset

Under IFRS, deferred tax balances are disclosed in the balance sheet as non-current items Under US GAAP,
deferred tax balances are disclosed as current or non-current based on the classification of the underlying
items generating the temporary difference

Net economic benefit payments

Under IFRS the Group recognises net economic benefit payments recevable from GSK and Pfizer These
payments anse where HIV products contributed to the Group by GSK and Pfizer are continuing to be sold by
GSK or Pfizer companies because the ViV Healthcare trading entity 1s not yet operational or due to legal or
local operating restricttons Under US GAAP the net economic benefit payments receivable from GSK are not
recognised as they are due from an entity under common contral Where GSK makes a net economic benefit
payment under IFRS this Is treated as a credit to the Income Statement, under US GAAP this 1s treated as an
additional capital contribution

Research and development

Research and development {“R&D") expenditure 1s charged to the income statement in the period in which it
15 incurred except that under IFRS development expenditure 1s capitalised when the critena for recognising an
asset are met, usually when a regulatory filing has been made 1n a major market and approval 1s considered
highly probable Under US GAAP, all development expenditure is treated as an expense in the Income
Statement

The following 1s a summary of the adjustments to profits and shareholders’ funds which would be required if
US GAAP had been applied instead of IFRS
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Income statement for the year ended 31st December 2013

IFRS Notel Note2 Note 3 Note 4 US GAAP
2013 2013
£'000 £°000
Turnover 1,371,000 - - - - 1,371,000
Costs and expenses
Cost of sales {170,511) - - 838 - (169,673)
Selling, general and (476,431) - - - (19,386) (495,817)
administrative expenses
Research and development (101,479) - - {29,199) - {130,678)
expenses
Amortisation of intangible {68,248) - - - - (68,248)
assets
Gain from affihates 528 - - - - 528
Loss on dissolution of Joint {2,854) - - - - (2,854)
vanture
Other iIncome/{expense) — net {216,170) 286,743 - - - 70,573
Income from continuing 335,835 286,743 - (28,361) (19,386) 574,831
operations before provision
for taxes on income
Provision for taxes on income (145,486) - (340} 5,000 - {140,826}
Net income 190,349 286,743 {340} (23,361) {19,386) 434,005
Other comprehensive income
Exchange movements on {9,286) - - - - (9,286)
overseas net assets and net
investment hedges
Tax on exchange movements {1,277) - - - - (1,277}
Actuarial gains on defined 1,751 - - - - 1,751
benefit plans
Deferred tax on actuanal (232} - - - - {232)
movements in defined benefit
plans
Total comprehensive Income 181,305 286,743 (3a0) (23,361) (19,386) 424,961
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Income statement for the year ended 31st December 2012

IFRS Notel Note2 Note 3 Note4  US GAAP
2012 2012
£'000 £'000
Turnover 1,337,449 - - - - 1,337,449
Costs and expenses
Cost of sales {205,451) - - - - {205,451)
Selling, general and (258,333) - - - - {258,333)
administrative expenses
Research and development (343,782) - - - - (343,782)
expenses
Amortisation of intangible (32,648) - - - - {32,648)
assets
Loss from affihates (33,290) - - - - {33,290}
Gain on acquisition of Joint 517,392 - - - - 517,392
Venture
Other income/(expense) - net (340,288) 454,253 - - - 113,965
Income from continuing 641,049 454,253 - - - 1,095,302
operations before provision
for taxes on iIncome
Provision for taxes on income {148,810) - {3,062) - - (151,872)
Net income 492,239 454,253  (3,062) - - 943,430
Other comprehensive income
Exchange movements on (10,772) - - - - {10,772)
overseas net assets and net
investment hedges
Actuarial losses on defined {(1,225) - - - - (1,225)
benefit plans
Deferred tax on actuanal 143 - - - - 143
movements In defined benefit
plans
Total comprehensive Income 480,385 454,253  {3,062) - - 931,576
Notes

1 Reversal of re-measured hability for estimated future preferential dwvidends payable to G5K 1s not
recognised under US GAAP

2 Adjustment to reflect the different tax treatment of deferred profit in stock
R&D expenditure 15 charged to the income statement in the period in which 1t 1s incurred except that
under IFRS development expenditure Is capitalised when the critena for recognising an asset are met,
usually when a regulatory filing has been made in a major market and approval is considered highly
probable Under US GAAP, all development expenditure s treated as an expense in the Income
Statement

4  Removal of the net economic benefit received from GSK, as under US GAAP this (s treated as an
additional capital contribution
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Balance sheet as at 31st December 2013

IFRS Note A Note B Note C Note D Note E US GAAP as
As at 31st at 31st
December December
2013 2013
£'000 £000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 675,359 - - - - - 675,359
Accounts Recevable 260,859 - - {16,345} - - 244,514
Inventories 21,077 - - - - - 21,077
Taxes and other current 40,280 52,940 ) i (8,957) ) 84,263
assets
Total current assets 997,575 52,940 - 116,345) (8,957) - 1,025,213
Goodwill 203,733 - - - - - 203,733
{dentifiable intangible
assets, less accumulated 2,006,387 - - - - (28,361} 1,978,026
amortisation
Investments in affiliates - - - - - - -
Other assets, deferred taxes
and deferred charges 62,433 (47,470) j ) i i 14,963
Total assets 3,270,128 5,470 - {16,345} {8,957) (28,361) 3,221,935
Liabihities and
Shareholders' Equity
Short-term borrowings and
overdraft (514) ) } ) ) ) {514)
Accounts payable {91,514) - - - - - {91,514}
Income taxes payable {4,407) - - - - - {4,407)
Other current habilities {inc
deferred taxes) {366,567) - 48,548 - - - (318,019)
Total current liabilities (463,002) - 48,548 - - - {414,454)
Other Provisions (6,666} - - - - - (6,666)
Long-term borrowings {752) - - - - - (752)
Deferred taxes (185,653} {5,470) - - - 5,000 (186,123)
COther non-current liabiities (2,060,439} - 1,002,938 - - - {(1,057,501)
Total habilities (2,716,512) (5,470} 1,051,486 - - 5,000 (1,665,496)
Common stock {11) - - - - - {11)
Additional paid in capital (341,000) - - {83,594) - - {424,594)
Retained earnings (and {212,605) {31,376}  (1,051,486) 99,939 8,957 23,361  (1,163,210)
Reserves)
Accumulated other
comprehensive - 31,376 - - - - 31,376
{iIncome}/expense
Total sharcholders’ equity {553,616) - {1,051,486} 16,345 8,957 23,361 {1,556,439)
Total habilities and (3,270,128)  (5,470) . 16345 8957 28361  (3,221,935)

shareholders' equity
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Balance sheet as at 31st December 2012

IFRS Note A Note B Note C Note b Note E US GAAP as
As at 31st at 31st
December December
2012 2012
£'000 £'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 755,812 - - - - - 755,812
Accounts Receivable 272,002 - - - - - 272,002
Inventories 16,458 - - - - 16,458
Taxes and other current 817 65,273 ) ) (8,617) ) 57,473
assets
Total current assets 1,045,089 65,273 - - {8,617} - 1,101,745
Goodwill 203,179 - - - - - 203,179
Identifiable intangible assets,
less accumulated 2,047,388 - - - - - 2,047,388
amortisation
Investments in affibates 4,454 - - - - - 4,454
Other assets, deferred taxes
. 68,371 58,072 - - - - 10,2
and deferred charges ( ) 299
Total assets 3,368,481 7,201 - - (8,617) - 3,367,065
Liabilities and Shareholders’
Equity
Short-term borrowings and
overdraft (8,858) - - - - (8,858)
Accounts payable {63,736) - - - - - {63,736}
Income taxes payable (6,506) - - - - - (6,5086)
Other current habilities {inc
deferred taxes) (342,873) - 9,868 - - - {333,005)
Total current habilities (421,973) - 9,868 - - - (412,105)
Other Provisions {10,173} - - - - - {10,173)
Long-term borrowings (414) - - - - {a14)
Deferred taxes (272,707) (7,201) - - - (279,908)
Other non-current habilities (1,656,349) - 764,743 - - - (891,606)
Total habilities (2,361,616) (7,201) 774,611 - - - {1,594,206)
Common stock (11) - - - - - (11)
Additional paid in capital (341,000) - - (80,553} - - (421,553)
Retained earnings (and (6658541 (20,861} (774,611) 80,553 8,617 - (1372156}
Reserves)
Accumulated other
comprehensive - 20,861 - - - - 20,861
{income)/expense
Total shareholders’ equity (1,006,865} - (774,611) - 8,617 - {1,772,859)
Total liabilities and (3,368,481} (7,201) - . 8,617 - {3,367,065)

shareholders’ equity

Page | 61




ViV Healthcare Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2013

Notes

A

Reclassifications (1) under US GAAP the current portion of the deferred tax asset and hability s
reclassified into current assets and current Labihties based on the classification of the underlying
balance to which the deferred tax relates and (n) foreign currency gains/losses on the translation of
assets and habilities held by entities whose functional currencies are not GBP are recorded in retained
earmings under IFRS and in accumulated other comprehensive income/expense under US GAAP
Removal of the hability for estimated future preferential dividends payable to GSK as this deoes not
meet the conditions for recognition under SFAS 5 and 15 a balance with an entity under common
control

Removal of the net economic benefit recevable from GSK as this 1s a balance with an entity under
common control Payments received from GSK are treated as additional capital contributions under
US GAAP

Adjustment to reflect the different tax treatment of deferred profit in stock

R&D expenditure 15 charged to the income statement in the pertod in which it 15 iIncurred Under IFRS
development expenditure 1s capitalised when the criteria for recognising an asset are met, usually
when a regulatory filing has been made in @ major market and approval 1s considered highly probable
Under US GAAP, all development expenditure is treated as an expense in the Income Statement
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Directors’ statement of responsibilities in relation to the Company's financial statements

Finanaial statements of ViV Healthcare Limited prepared under UK GAAP

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finanoal statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) Under company law the
Directors must not approve the Company financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company for that period

In preparmg those finanaal statements, the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them conststently,

+  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

s state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
to enable them to ensure that the Company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors in office at the date of this Report have each confirmed that

e 5o far as he or she i1s aware, there is no relevant audit mformation of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and

¢ he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information

This confirmation 15 given and should be interpreted n accordance with the prowvisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Going concern basis

After making enquinies, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepaning the finanoal statements

Independent auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are willing to continue n office as auditors and resolutions dealing with their
reappointment and remuneration will be proposed at a General Meeting of the Company

On behalf of the Board

D Limet
Director

27th March 2014
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Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements, defined below

e pgive atrue and fair view of the state of the parent company’s , ViV Healthcare Limited’s (the “Company”}),
affairs as at 31 December 2013,

e have been properly prepared in accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
+« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

This opimion 1s to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report

What we have audited

The finanaial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, which are prepared by ViV Healthcare Limited,
comprise

¢ Company balance sheet, and
* related notes

The financtal reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation comprises applicable law and Uruted
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and
considered future events

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘I1SAs (UK &
Ireland)’) An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

* whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's arcumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed,

+ the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
= the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial iInformation in the Directors’ report to 1dentify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that s apparently matenally
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit

If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
report

Opinion on matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, tn our opinion

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
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s adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us, or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have no exceptions to report anising from this responsibibty
Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law have not been made We have no exceptions to report anising from this
responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of responsibilities set out on page 8, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinton on the financral statements 1n accordance with apphcable faw
and 15As (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This report, including the opimons, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Other matters

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of VitV Healthcare Limited for the year ended 31st
December 2013

The Company has passed a resolution in accordance with section 506 of the Compames Act 2006 that the senior
statutory auditors’ name should not be stated

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

27" March 2014 ‘
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Company balance sheet — UK GAAP
at 31st December 2013

Notes 2013 2012
£000 £000

Fixed assets
Investments D 2,444,415 2,444,415
Current assets
Debtors E 57,150 126,290
Creditors- amounts falling due within one year F (60,917) {17,889)
Net current (liabilities)/assets (3,767} 108,401
Total assets less current liabilities 2,440,648 2,552,816
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year F (1,753,185) {1,733,593)
Net assets 687,463 819,223
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital G 11 11
Share premium account H 341,000 341,000
Other reserves H (437,111} (374,360)
Profit and loss account H 783,563 852,572
Total shareholders’ funds 687,463 819,223

The financial statements on pages 66 to 70 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27th March 2014 and

signed on its behalf by

D Limet
Director
ViV Healthcare Limited

Registered number 06876560

Page | 66




ViV Healthcare Limited
Notes to the company balance sheet — UK GAAP
at 31st December 2013

A Presentation of the financial statements
Description of business

VIV Healthcare 15 a specialist HIV group of companies focused solely on the research, development and
commerciahisation of HIV medicnes On 12th August 2013 ViV Healthcare received FDA approval for Twvicay in the
US This resulted n an equity shift of 0 9% from Pfizer to GSK as per the shareholders agreement The economic
interest in the Group 1s now held 77 4% by GSK, 12 6% by Pfizer and 10% by Shionogi

Preparation of financial statements

The financial statements, which are prepared on a going concern basis, are drawn up In accordance with UK
generally accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP) and with UK accounting presentation as at 31st December 2013,
with comparative figures as at 31st December 2012

As permitted by s 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company 15 not presented in
this Annual Report

Accounting convention and standards

The balance sheet has been prepared using the historical cost convention and complies with applicable UK
accounting standards

Accounting principles and policies

The preparation of the balance sheet in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles reguires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabihties at the date of the balance sheet Actual amounts could differ from
those estimates

The balance sheet has been prepared in accordance with the Company’s accounting polices approved by the Board
and described in Note B

B Accounting policies
Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate ruling on the date of transaction Foreign currency
assets and habilities are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Dividends paid and received

Dividends paid and received are included in the financial statements in the period in which the related
dividends are actually paid or received

Expenditure

Expenditure 15 recognised in respect of goods and services received when supplied n accordance with contractual
terms Provision 15 made when an obligation exists for a future liability in respect of a past event and where the
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated
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Investments in subsidiary companies
Investments in subsidiary companies are held at cost less any proviston for impairment
Impairment of investments

The carrying values of investments are reviewed for impairment when there 1s an indication that the mvestment
might be impaired Any provision resulting from an impairment review i1s charged to the income statement in the
year concerned

Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at the amounts expected to be paid applying tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

The Company accounts for taxation which 1s deferred or accelerated by reason of bming differences which have
originated but not reversed by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are only recogmised to the extent that
they are considered recoverable against future taxable profits

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse Deferred tax habilities and assets are not discounted

C Operating profit
A fee of £4k (2012 £6k) relating to the audit of the Company has beencharged in operating profit

D Fixed asset investments

2013 2012
£000 £'000
Cost and carrying value at 1st January 2,444,415 2,320,953
Addtions - 378,000
Impairment - {254,538)
Cost and carrying value at 31st December 2,444,415 2,444 415

The directors behieve that the carrying value of the investments 1s supported by their underlying net assets

Details of the principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company as at 315t December 2013 are given in Note |

E Debtors

2013 2012
£'000 £'000

Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed by ViV Healthcare Group undertakings 41,483 124,838
Amounts owed by GSK Group undertakings 15,082 -
Amounts owed by Pfizer Group undertakings - 31
Taxation 584 1,421
57,150 126,290

The taxation debtor 1s due from feliow ViV Healthcare Group undertakings
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F Creditors
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year
Other Creditors 60,910 17,882
Accruals and deferred income 7 7
60,917 17,889
Amounts due after more than one year
Amounts owed to VitV Healthcare Group undertakings 1,369,232 1,369,363
Other creditors 383,953 364,230
Corporation Tax -
1,753,185 1,733,593

Other creditors represent future preferential dividends due to GSK, Pfizer and Shicnog) (Note G)

G Called up share capital

2013 2012 2013 2012

Number of Number of
shares shares £'000 £'000

Issued and fully paid

Class A Shares of £1 each 6,950 6,950 7 7
Class B Shares of £1 each 2,798 2,798 3 3

Class € Shares of £1 each 252 252
Class D1 & D2 Shares of £1 each 1,112 1,112 1 1
11,112 11,112 i1 11

Holders of Class A, B and C Shares are entitled to both preferential dividends and ordinary dividends Ciass D
shares are spht into Class D1 and Class D2 Class D1 are entitled to ordinary dividends and Class D2 are entitled
to Shionogi preferred ordinary dividend Preferential dividends are based on the performance of certain assets
and are payable in full prior to any ordinary dividend Any amounts that cannot be paid due to insufficient
distributable reserves will be carried forward to future years and will be pad n preference to any
subsequently declared dividend

The Directors propose an interim ordinary dividend of £370 million in respect of the year ended 31st
December 2013 being £40,845 per Class A Share, £16,149 per Class B Share, £15,592 per Class C Share,
£66,664 per Class D2 Share and a preferential dividend of £61m being £6,934 per Class A Share, £4,020 per
Class B Share, £4,040 per Class C Share and £173 per Class D1 Share The dividend has been calculated in
accordance with the revised methodology agreed by the Board on 26" September 2013

The Directors proposed and paid two interrm ordinary dividends amounting to £634 milion and one
preferential dividend of £18 million n respect of the year ended 31st December 2012 The first interim
ordinary dividend of £450 million being £55,036 per Class A Share, £22,194 per Class B Share and £21,429 per
Class C Share was paid on the 21st March 2013 The second itenim ordinary dividend of £184 million being
£22,193 per Class A Share, £8,950 per Class B Share, £8,641 per Class C Share and £5,570 per Class D2 Share
was paid on the 28th June 2013
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Notes to the company balance sheet — UK GAAP

at 31st December 2013

H Reserves

Profit and loss

Share Otherreserves Total reserves

account Premium
account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1st January 2012 926,805 (495,890) 430,915
Profit for the financial year 353,304 - - 353,304
Transfer of finance expense related to (121,665) - 121,665 -
preferential dividend
Preferential dividend to shareholders (36,865) - 36,865 .
Ordinary dividends to shareholders (306,007) - - (306,007)
Shionogi preferred ordinary dividend 37,000 - {37,000} -
Share premium on share 1ssues - 341,000 - 341,000
At 31st December 2012 852,572 341,000 {374,360) 819,212
Profit for the financial year 502,793 - - 502,793
Transfer of finance expense related to 80,633 - {80,633} -
preferential dividend
Preferential dividend to shareholders (17,882) - 17,882 -
Ordinary dividends to shareholders (634,553) - - (634,553)
At 31st December 2013 783,563 341,000 (437,111) 687,452

Other reserves represents the preferential dividends payable to shareholders (Note G} and additional value
attributed to the original contribution of the former GSK HIV business in Canada in October 2009 following
finalisation of the value of the contribution at that date

Other reserves do not affect the calculation of the Company’s realised profits available for distribution

I Principal subsidiaries

The principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st December 2013 are as follows

Percentage Class of Country of
Company shares held shares held Incorporation
ViV Healthcare UK Limited 100% Ordinary England
ViV Healthcare Overseas Limited 100% Ordinary England
ViV Healthcare Trading Services UK Limited 100% Ordinary England
PHIVCO UK Limited 100% Ordinary England
PHIVCO UK Il Limited 100% Ordinary England
VuV Healthcare UK {No 2} Limited 100% Ordinary Jersey
ViV Healthcare Company 100% Common USA
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